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Disclaimer : This document contains statements
about expected future events and financials of Amber
Enterprises India Limited, which are ‘forward-look-
ing’. By their nature, forward-looking statements
require the Company to make assumptions and are
subject to inherent risks and uncertainties. There is a
significant risk that the assumptions, predictions, and
other forward-looking statements may not prove to be
accurate. Readers are cautioned not to place undue
reliance on forward-looking statements as sever-

al factors could cause assumptions, actual future
results and events to differ materially from those
expressed in the forward-looking statements. Accord-
ingly, this document is subject to the disclaimer and
qualified in its entirety by the assumptions, qualifica-
tions and risk factors referred to in the Management

Discussion and Analysis section of this Annual Report.
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COLLABORATE.

EXPLORE.
EXPAND.

Collaborations are the
perfect way of bringing
together perspectives and
strengths to accomplish
goals. They enable the
exploration of untapped
potential while expanding
with cumulative capabilities
and resources and
coordinated strategies to
achieve shared goals.

At Amber, we have
consistently pursued
growth backed by our
strategic acquisitions,
robust capacities, and
effective solution provider.
This pursuit gives us

the impetus to explore
better opportunities and
possibilities.

It enables us to expand
across newer geographies

through a widened product
portfolio, enhanced capabilities
and higher profitability — thereby
propelling our efforts by combining
synergies, driving exploration
endeavours and helping us

grow further.

This Report is a testimony to

how, through the past few years,
our Company has been thriving
with expertise and experience
underpinned by a simple yet
effective three-pronged approach
COLLABORATE. EXPLORE. EXPAND.
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HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE YEAR

Revenue from Operations

Operating EBIDTA

?4,20,640Lakh

Profit After Tax (PAT)

1 1,132 Lan

3 29,565Lakh

Return on Capital
Employed (ROCE)

114
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Revenue from RAC Division*

1,970,470 ( aw

Revenue from Electronics Division

Revenue from Motor Division

L
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?23,586Lakh

Revenue from Mobility Division

05,0221

Revenue from Component
Division*

228,80 ( Lan

Consolidated Revenue CAGR for

last 4 years

2 1,05,0688 14

* RAC —Includes Completely Built Units (CBUs) of RAC and is
after inter-company eliminations

A Components —Includes both RAC components and Non-RAC
components excluding motors and PCBA

138.0-
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A COMPREHENSIVE AND INTEGRATED

SOLUTIONS PROVIDER TO THE INDIAN

HVAC INDUSTRY

Amber Enterprises India Limited (‘AEIL' or ‘Amber’ or ‘The
Company' or ‘We'") is an established most backward integrated
market leader in the Indian Room Air Conditioner (RAC)
industry and Air Conditioning industry for Mobility Application

such as Railways, Metros, Buses etc. The Company has
diversified portfolio which includes RACs, RAC and non RAC
components and Air conditioning solutions for Railways,
Metro's, Defence, Bus & Commercial segment. The Company
has multiple manufacturing facilities across various states in
India, strategically located close to customers enabling faster
turn around. This state-of-the-art manufacturing facilities are
spread across strategic locations in proximity to the customers
— ensuring quicker turn-around time. This enables us to deliver
higher quality products at a much more efficient and faster pace
to our top marquee clientele across RAC and other divisions

in the industry. Amber's backward integration coupled with
strong R&D capabilities, secures a higher proportion in the ODM
industry for the Company.

Manufacturing Plants

23

Spread across

8 Indian States

Decades of
Rich Experience

3
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Our
Mission

e To be the first choice of
the customer

e To add value to their
business

e To ensure discipline and
implement strong
management principles

® To be the No.1 OEM/ODM Bl
and parts manufacturing
company

® Provide excellent services
to our customers

® Create growth for all

associated with our
Our

organisation
Vision

Our
Phl'OSOphy  Smart working

e Keep innovating

* Happiness for all
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EXPLORING POSSIBILITIES

Providing Solutions for Static & Mobility
Applications Catering Customer Needs

Amber is committed to creating value through reliable products that serve as the foundation for the Company's long-term

journey. Our well-defined and effective approach helps us move closer to our goal of delivering comfortability through our

products and services.

Room Air Conditioners
(Inverter and Fixed Speed)
(2-star to 5-star Energy Ratings)

INDOOR UNITS 1TON 1.5TON 2TON
OUTDOOR UNITS 1 TON 1.5 TON 2TON
WINDOW ACS 1TON 1.5TON 2TON

Room Air Conditioner
Components

e Heat exchangers
e Copper system tubing
e Multi-flow condensers

e Printed circuit board
assemblies

e Sheet metal components

e Injection moulding
components

e AC motors
e Cross flow fans

e Injection Moulding and
Sheet Metal moulds

Non-Air Conditioners
Components

e VVaccum formed
components

e Plastic extruded sheets

e Non-air conditioner
motors

e Printed circuit board
assemblies

e Sheet metal components

e Injection moulding
components

e Injection Moulding and
Sheet Metal moulds

Commercial Air Conditioners

CASSETTE 1TONTO 1.5TON 2TON
(OUTDOOR UNIT) 4 TON

DUCTABLE 3TON 55TON 8.5TON
(INDOOR UNIT)

DUCTABLE 3TON 55TON 8.5TON
(INDOOR UNIT)

Roof-Mounted AC for Mainline Coaches

® Standard RMPU

¢ Double Decker
° LHB ® Meter Gauge

Electronics and Refrigeration

Solutions to Railways

¢ Cold Unit for Pantry

® Hot Case for Pantry

¢ Electronic Control Panel
(Switchboard Cabinet)

Roof-Mounted Loco Driver's
Cab Air Conditioners

Defence HVAC Products
® Defence Shelter Air Conditioners

® Vertical Slip on Air Conditioners
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EXPANDING FOOTPRINT
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Our Geographical Presence

*

MANESAR
(HARYANA)
(1 Unit)
H Rajpura
q U?mt) 9 Dehradun
Jhajjar '
; U.rjwjits) o " AuDReeL? *
SHAHJAHANPU "Q Gre(gtﬁr 'No)ida
i : ; : nits
(RAJASTHAN) Yo Q
(1 UNIT) ' '
M
Faridabad
(2 Units)
KADI
(1 Unit)
Q
(4PLLJJn'e |
nits
State-of-the-art
E— Manufacturing Facilities
NEW FACILITY
Q Punjab 1 Unit 2 3
Q Uttarakhand 4 Units
Q9 Haryana 5Un!ts 9 CHENNAI .
Q Uttar Pradesh 6 Units (1 L’Jmt) States across |nd|a
9 Gujarat T Unit
Q Maharashtra 4 Units
Q Tamil Nadu 1 Unit
Q9 Rajasthan 1 Unit

Disclaimer: This map is a generalised illustration only for the ease of the reader to understand the locations, and it is not intended to be used for reference
purposes. The representation of political boundaries and the names of geographical features/states do not necessarily reflect the actual position. The Company
or any of its directors, officers or employees, cannot be held responsible for any misuse or misinterpretation of any information or design thereof. The Company
does not warrant or represent any kind in connection to its accuracy or completeness.

A
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COLLABORATING CAPABILITIES

Synergies Facilitating Future-preparedness

Well-planned acquisitions leading to synergies serve our aspiration of advancing at a constant pace. They help us harness
our potential for translating opportunities into growth. Our journey, combined with fruitful synergies, paved our way toward
establishing a stronger brand impression. This approach has aided us in reorganising our business streams into 5 divisions
namely - RAC, Motor, Electronics, Components and Mobility.

AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited

One of the leading Cross Flow Fans (CFF) manufacturers in India. (erstwhile

Pasio India) acquired from Pee Aar business of Cross flow fan [CFF), ODU fans &

fan guard and plastic parts for water dispenser and refrigeration on slump sale

basis during the financial year 2021-22

The Company is engaged in the business of:

e Cross flow fans (CFF), One of the leading manufacturer of

CFF in India

e Fans and fan guard for outdoor units of room air
conditioners

e Plastic parts for water dispenser and refrigeration

applications (other than automobile industry)

e Plastic parts for seats of trucks, tractors and buses

SYNERGIES
« Increased Product offering

Will help in garnering higher wallet share from existing
customers

« Reliable & Critical Functional Component
« Increased Backward Integration

This acquisition will help to grow component segment
with focus on providing more backward integrated
solution in key component of RAC segment viz. cross
flow fan (CFF) along with solution of Injection molding
component for other industries - refrigeration and

automobile segment

« High Entry Barrier Product

Pee Aar is the only domestic Company manufacturing
CFF and there are 2 other foreign entities

Acquisition of /3% stake
in the Company

Pravartaka Tooling Services
Private Limited

Among the leading manufacturers of injection mould tools
and injection moulding components for diverse industry

customers

The Business is being acquired by Pravartaka from Pioneer
Tooling Services (“Pioneer”] one of the leading injection
moulding tool maker and injection moulding components
maker for consumer durable, automotive and electronics

industry on slump sale basis in the financial year 2021-22

SYNERGIES

This acquisition will help the Company to have inhouse
capability of injection molding tools manufacturing and
grow its component segment with focus on providing more
diversified solution of Injection molding component for
industries such as automotive, electronics & consumer

durable

Acquisition of 60% stake
in the Company

&)
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EXPANDING AND ADVANCING

PICL (India) Private Limited (100% subsidiary)

PICL is the leading induction motor manufacturer for HVAC
industry in India. With a strong manufacturing prowess the
Company offers over 200 Models and serves some of the key
marquee customers across both domestic and export market.

SYNERGIES

e Acquisition of PICL in FY13 has provided the Company
with high degree of backward integration and the
flexibility to control the manufacturing processes and
reduce dependence on external suppliers

PICL is the leading supplier of electric motors to the
RAC industry (including for WACs, SACs and package
units) in India and provide electric motor solutions
globally as well

Over the years, PICL has successfully widened its
product offering from PSC motors to BLDC motors

e The Company’s strategic investment in PICL has given
an edge on the R&D side with advanced software
and sophisticated testing technologies for faster
development of models

IL JIN Electronics (India) Private Limited
(70% subsidiary)

IL JIN Electronics is engaged in the manufacturing,
assembling, dealing, importing and exporting of electronic
assembled PCBA for Consumer Electronics. The strong
manufacturing capabilities has enabled the Company in in
providing fast as well as flexible production systems with
high productivity. The Company serves a vast spectrum of

clients in Room ACs, Consumer Durables and Automobiles

EVER Electronics Private Limited
(70% subsidiary)

Everis the leading PCBA Manufacturer in India engaged in
manufacturing of Consumer Electronics PCBA.

SYNERGIES

e Through the acquisition of IL JIN and Ever, the Company
has been able to deliver PCBA solutions for both AC and
non- AC consumer durable segments and automobile
industry and continue to remain prominent player in the
PCBA segment

e With the acquisition of IL JIN in December 2017, the
Company has been able to effectively increase the share

of ODM solutions provided to clients

e From being an OEM company, IL JIN now has developed
inhouse PCB board for Inverter ACs which is a
breakthrough

Sidwal Refrigeration Industries
Private Limited
(100% subsidiary)

Sidwal with its wide product offering in mobility
applications, is the first company to provide indigenised
solutions for roof mounted package units (RMPU) for
Indian Railways and Metro. With a strong and robust R&D
capacities the Company serves Indian Railways, Metro,
Defence, Bus and Telecom sector in India.

SYNERGIES

e With the acquisition of Sidwal in FY20, the Company has
been able to develop skills and expertise of manufacturing
HVACs for railways, metros and buses and have been
able to expand the product portfolio to cater to additional
sectors including defence and telecom

e SIDWAL is the largest supplier of roof mounted package
unit air conditioners. The pan-India service network
makes the Company a preferred partner for the
customers by ensuring availability of after-sales support

e Since the acquisition of Sidwal, the Company has been
able to increase capacity utilization at existing plants,

thereby increasing operational efficiencies

Amber Enterprises Inc. USA

Amber Enterprises USA Inc. has become wholly owned

subsidiary (100%) of Amber Enterprises India Limited.

SYNERGIES

The Company will help Amber Enterprises India Limited to
increase its export from India in North American market.
It will increase the footprints of Amber Enterprises India

Limited in foreign countries along with export turnover.

(o
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COLLABORATING EFFICIENCY.
EXPANDING PROFITABILITY.

Numbers Reflecting Our Performance

Revenue from Operations (% in Lakh)
e

396,279 4,20,640

® 303,052
o

2,75,199
(J

. I

2018-19  2019-20  2020-21  2021-22 j

Operating EBITDA™ (% in Lakh)
-

32,617 29565
22,858 L

®
21,543
(J (J
- I I

2018-19  2019-20  2020-21  2021-22 ]

PAT (% in Lakh) Net Debt-to-Equity Ratio
( (
16,414 0.09
o 0.20 0.21
11,132 o o
9,477 8328 °
i ' I
L I L (0.07)
2018-19  2019-20  2020-21  2021-22 ] 2018-19  2019-20 20.21 2021-22 ]

O
)
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# includes AmberPR Technoplast India Pvt Ltd
(erstwhile Pasio India Pvt Ltd) financials from
PAT: Profit after Tax Dec'21 to Mar'22. Pravartaka Tooling Services

ROCE: Return on Capital Employed financials for the month of February & March 2022

ROE: Return on Equity * Before impact of ESOP expenses of ¥ 15.67
EPS: Earnings Per Share Crores in FY22

ROE (%)
e
15.1
o
10.0
o 59 6.6
@
@
& I
2018-19  2019-20  2020-21 2021-22]
ROCE (%)
;-
18.5
14.7 o
@
11.0
93 °
o
_
2018-19  2019-20  2020-21 2021-22]
EPS )
>
50.37
o
30.14 32.41
24.96 ()
@
&
2018-19  2019-20  2020-21 2021-22]

L
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LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

| hope you
all are keeping safe
and healthy.
| am delighted to present
to you Amber's Annual

Report for the
FY 2021-22.
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Dear Stakeholders,

The year 2027 began with global recovery prospects
from COVID-19 pandemic and
opportunities for a brighter future. With massive

usherd new

vaccine drive the lives are returning to normal and
the economy and industries are building back fast,
undettered by significant labor and supply chain
challenges. The recovery gained momentum in
2nd half of the year where production and capacity
utilisation started gaining traction. As a result of
which the order books started to reflect a healthy
growth signalling a strong demand for FY 22. Being
an optimist, | can only say that what lies ahead of us
is only going to get better than what we have been
through already!

Despite all the
turbulences and lows,
AEIL performed well
across all business
segments, registering
considerable growth.

Economy overview

The outbreak of pandemic tought all of us be it an
organisation or an individual to always be prepared,
respond and adapt to the changing environment.
On the heels of massive vaccination drive, easing
restrictions and revival of demand led to a faster than
expected recovery of the economy. The second half of
the year registered growth in business activities, in the
economy and better sentiments overall. However, the

geopolitical crisis resulting from the conflicts between

Russia and Ukraine led to an inflationary pressures
on commodity prices, slowing the economy further.
However, a positive spurt of growth is anticipated
after the second half of FY 2022-23. Despite all the
turbulences and lows, AEIL performed well across all
business segments, registering considerable growth.

Industry Overview

The Indian RAC market showed a muted growthinthelast
five years. During the year 2021-22 the first quarter which
remains the peak season for business went negative
due to onslaught of the pandemic. Whereas, quarter 2
and quarter 3 witnessed a sluggish growth. Penting up
the demand, quarter 4 marked a robust growth thereby
leading the industry to a total of approximately 6.4 million
units as compared to approximately 5.2 million units of
the preceeding year. Out of this ~6.4 million units, the
estimated market size of RAC Industry at OEM level
excluding GST is valued at ¥ 12,160 Crores of which
Amber enjoys an approxumately ¥ 3,229 Crores. This
translates to 26.6% of the overal market share in value
terms. It is also worthwhile to mention various initiatives
undertaken by the government to facilitate economic
activities and restore customer confidence which
inculcated demand in the Consumer Durables market.

Further with India inching towards a 5 trillion dollar
economy, the per capitaincome of the country is going
to be doubled and the demand for air conditioners are
destined to grow at a double digit growth in the years
to come. As per various industry reports, it will not be
a surprise that India by 2030 may witness a domestic
market of 24 million units and emerge strongly as
global sourcing destination.

Our Step towards Collaborate. Explore. Expand.

Despite all the external challenges, we, at Amber,
remained committed to creating synergies through
our strategic collaborations. Driven by an industry
experience of three decades and robust capabilities,
we continue to explore better opportunities with an
intent to expand beyond our current geographical
presence.

G
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| am pleased to inform that we successfully acquired
a 73% stake in AmberPR Technoplast India this year
and a 60% stake in Pravartaka Tooling Services Private
Limited. Our acquisition of AmberPR will help us grow
our component segment with focus on providing
more backward integrated solution in key component
of RAC segment viz. cross flow fan along with solution
of Injection molding component for other industries
viz. refrigeration and automobile segment.

Our acquisition of Pravartaka will help us provide
more diverse solutions of injection moulding tools
and components for automotive, electronics,
and consumer durable industries. Through these
acquisitions and developments, we are hopeful of
drawing on the benefits of added synergies while

offering excellence to our stakeholders.

Our Performance in FY 2021-22

As a part of our
action plan, we intend
to attain further market
penetration and wallet
share to meet this
growing demand.

During the year, we witnessed demand from B2B
segment due to the economy's reopening. This
marked our highest-ever revenue in the last two
years and helped us make a strong comeback.
The Revenue from Operations, during the vyear,
% 4,20,640 Lakhin financial year 2021-22 as compared
to ¥ 303,052 Lakh in financial year 2020-21, a 38.80%

TS

growth. RAC, for the year, contributed 46.9% of the
total revenue, while motors, electronics, components
and mobility applications contributed 5.6%, 15.5%,
25.1% and 6.9% of the revenue, respectively. Operating
EBIDTA of ¥ 29,565 Lakh in financial year 2021-22 as
compared to ¥ 22,858 Lakh in financial year 2020-
21, recording a 29.4% growth. Consumer Durables
and Premium products witnessed healthy growth
despite Covid-19-related concerns. The past year
saw considerable demand for home appliances amid
a hybrid working system. As a part of our action plan,
we intend to attain further market penetration and
wallet share to meet this growing demand.

Our Divisional Performance

Amber in its quest to provide the best solution to its
growing stakeholders, it has introduced the divisional
framework which will ensure a pro-active engagement,
better services and an inclusive growth. The divisions
are as follows:

1.RAC Division

2.Mobility Division

3.Motor Division

4.Electronics Division

5.Components Dision (RAC+Non RAC)

6.9%

25.1%
FY22
T 4,20,640
Lakhs
15.5%

I rAC I Motors

Components

Electronics

Mobility Applications

During the year, all the divisions have performed
splendidly by adding new customers, new product
lines and new geographies.
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All our business divisions are geared to take advantage
of the opportunities present and will boost our position
in the domestic market while also establishing a solid
foundation for the exports market going forward.

PLI Scheme

Amber is a strong beneficiary of the Government's
PLI Scheme for AC & its components. The production
capacity provided by the PLI Scheme is likely to
translate into significant growth for the Air Conditioner
industry. Amber gained approval for AC components
under the normal investment category, with a ¥ 3
billion investment along with an approval for the
Electronics Division under the major investment
category, with a % 1 billion investment. This will be
led by an indigenisation of completely built-up units
and developments in the component ecosystem.
This scheme also becomes an enabler for lifting as
well as creating a local component ecosystem. It is
also expected to add value addition to the present
domestic AC market and with respect to components
which stands at 25% it is expected to reach 75% in
next five to six years.

Our Capex Plans

The FY 2021-22 for Amber was a year of expansion
and capital expenditures. We have planned capital
expenditures for two greenfield projects, one in Pune
and the other in Sri City, which we anticipate will lead
to improved revenues. On a consolidated basis, We
expanded our facilities at Kadi in Gujarat for injection
molding components and Chennai in Tamil Nadu for
sheet metal components and heat exchangers, which
we started on rented premises. Amber spent ¥ 4.33
billion (including right of use assets but excluding
assets acquired pursuant to business combination)
in FY 2021-22 on capital expenditure on the existing
plants, R&D and development of new greenfield sites.

The Supa (Pune) greenfield facility was made
operational in Q4, whereas contruction work at SRI
CITY facility is in progress and on track. We expect
this facility to be operational by September, 2022.

Our responsibly towards the community and
environment

Amber has always remained on the front foot when
it came to serving community and environment.
We work with the mantra of 'Moving Together and
Inclusive Growth' where we believe the community
too must grow with us. At Amber we are committed
for the development of society where we operate and
our CSR initiatives reflects our commitment to build
and support the society by impacting a larger number
of beneficiaries each time.

ESG is an embedded part of Amber's strategy where
we believe in creating sustainable values for long term.
In the recent years, our increased focus on improving
AEIL's environmental, social and governance strategy
has enabled us to build better growth prospects.

Note of Thanks

| extend my heartfelt gratitude to my entire team for
their hard work and dedication in creating value for
our stakeholders. Team work at Amber is behind
Amber's growth story and every team member is a
vital part of the Amber family.

I am glad as a company, we could make our presence
felt in profound and meaningful ways as we looked
after the community's wellbeing and health and
promise to continue doing so in future.

Lastly, I am thankful for the unceasing support from
our shareholders, vendors, bankers, FIs ,management
and customers. Their faith in us makes us who we are,
and we look forward to their continued support as we
march ahead in pursuit of making a better tomorrow.

Regards,

Jasbir Singh
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

MIINGIA0TLYHOdHOD



K amber

E: ENVIRONMENT

S: SOCIAL

G: GOVERNANCE

Being a responsible corporate entity, we
understand that ESG consideration is
the core of every business. Amber's ESG
agenda reflects a sense of responsibility
in resolving various community concerns.
In recent years, our increased focus
on improving Amber environmental,
social, and governance (ESG) strategy
has enabled us to build better growth
prospects. With this, we continue to
advance and extend our leadership
and collaborations across the industry.
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ENVIRONMENT

Environmental stewardship is among our priorities. Our
products are environment-friendly and safe for customers
as they comply with appropriate health checks and quality
standards. The Company manufactures products that can
be recycled. Thereby, lowering our impact on aggravating
any sort of environmental hazards while meeting customer
requirements.

SOCIAL

We intend to increase industry inclusiveness by
remaining dedicated to attracting the greatest talent

and concentrating on education and skilling. We are
committed to promote inclusion and diversity persistently
across the organisation and investing in programmes
aimed at community betterment. Our endeavours are
aimed at helping speed up social change by investing in
communities and organisations, and addressing society's
most pressing issues.

GOVERNANCE

Amber's Board and governance structure encourage
ethical behaviour, informed and effective decision-making
within industry regulations and performance monitoring.
We are dedicated to conducting business in an honest and
lawful manner across all operational levels. Our Human
Rights Policy covers concerns relating to customers,
workers, business partners, and people at all levels of our
supply chain.
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ENVIRONMENT

We are committed to facilitating sustainable development
by giving back to the community we operate in. The
Company strives to raise awareness among stakeholders
and reviews business efficiency regularly to avoid
wastefulness. Our Company's integrated measures
comprise reducing energy consumption and greenhouse
gas emissions while increasing operational efficiency

and advancing clean technology. Through innovation and
technological advancement, Amber strives to minimise
our Company's contribution to unfavourable impact on the
environment.

Amber is comitted to bring a positive change in the
environment it operates. The Company strives to
achieve Carbon Neutrality by implementing 100%
renewable energy throughtout the organization

in coming years.

Maximum utilisation of natural light and ventilation
during the work

Encouraging the '‘Go Green' practices in all our
manufacturing units

Installed solar rooftops in various manufacturing
units and endeavoring to cover every unit under the
group to be 100% powered with renewable sources
in coming years.

Installing energy saving building sunlight
transparent sheets for electricity saving in daytime

Amber facilitates good labour practices, consumer security,
good corporate and social governance, and social ethics.
Our sustainability structure and integrated business

model enable consistent value creation by transforming
possibilities into growth. Furthermore, we take relevant

and necessary initiatives to minimise business risks and
negative impacts on the environment arising from our
business actions.
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Designed inverter PCBA's which help reduce
energy by 10-12%

Designed energy efficient products with non
ozone depleting refrigerant

Using high efficiency conmpressor

Developed Heat exchangers with high sub cooling

Facilitating rainwater harvesting, for recycling water and
reducing water consumption

Using STP water in gardening, along with sprinklers, to
reduce water consumption

Laying thrust on zero waste to the land fill and circular
economy

L
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Installed AC variable frequency drive VFD at air
compressor, cooling tower, and grinders for energy
saving up to 47,100 KW.

Installed section-wise energy meter which is monitored
regularly for managing efficient consumption

Changed ceramic-insulated heater to increase efficiency
and reduce cycle time with energy savings of 104,000 KW

Installed AIRTRON AC SAVER controller and reduced
electricity consumption from 1TKWH to 7 KWH

Implemented biofuel additive to increase the efficiency
and reduce our dependency over diesel in paint shops
and gensets

Installed timers on air conditioners, lights, and street
lights for reducing energy consumption

At Amber we strive to minimise the operational waste and
endeavor to restrict and eliminate the use of hazardous
substances in our products. As a responsible organisation
Amber has entered into an agreement with recyclers for
recycling and scientific disposal of electronic and plastic
wastes generated during the operations and packaging
process.

We at Amber are committed to facilitate sustainable
development by minimising our contribution to
unfavourable impact on the environment.
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SOCIAL

CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITIES

Amber from the very beginning of its journey has
contributed towards development of the community where
it operates. Our CSR initiatives revolve around areas of
education, skilling and upskilling, healthcare, sanitation and
hygiene and shelter to the needy among others.

Some of the key initiatives undertaken during the year are
appended below:

* Promoting education for under privillaged

» Vocational skill development in rural and urban areas

* Proper and affordable healthcare facilities, hygiene and
sanitation

» Providing safe drinking water
¢ Providing homes and hostels for women and orphans

» Set up old age homes, day-care centres and other such
facilities for senior citizens

» Tree Plantation drive and conservation of natural
resources

e Contribution towards Prime Minister Cares Fund

OUR PEOPLE

© Amber promotes a culture of inclusion that respects
differences of thought and perspective.

« Amber strives to establish an inclusive, diverse workplace
that represents the communities wherein we operate.

o Everyindividual in Amber is treated with dignity and
respect. We have zero tolerance for any form of
harassment and diversity in all forms is valued.

» We adhere to the principle of continual training for our
employees in order to prepare them for the future. All
our staff members are subjected to a comprehensive

training programme. In addition to the introduction
training, employees receive monthly training
on the job-related modules to assist them
in enhancing their performance over time.
These types of activities aid in attracting
and retaining the greatest people in the
market.
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Safety of our people is our utmost concern
and hence not only people over the shop floor
but every employee of Amber has to undergo
this training. Further regular mock drills, and
daily safety briefings are made with employees
before they enter the plant.

A robust system encompassing Safety
regulations, procedures and training, danger
identification and correction, incident reporting
and investigation, safety communications are
put in place to limit the risk of incidents and
injuries

At Amber we believe in equal opportunity and
fair pay to all. We do not discriminate over
gender, caste or culture.

COLLABORATING WITH
COMMUNITY

At Amber, we value the rights of Indigenous Peoples,
including their rights to self-determination and the
preservation of their culture, identity, traditions, and
customs. Amber values the diversity and cultures in
the communities where it work. We collaborate with
indigenous people to create mutually beneficial
relationships based on respect, cooperation, and
economic inclusion.

Amber also has committees to look after
harassment related issues be it work related
or sexual harassment. During the year no
complaint pertaining to work or sexual
harassment was received.

Amber cares for the health and well being

of its employee and hence conduct regular
meditation and Dhyan sessions for its people
to make their lives stress free and healthy.

Providing access to online resources and
counselling services through our Employee and
Family Assistance Program.

M3IINYIA0TLVHOdH0D
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Our corporate governance is a reflection of our value
system, encompassing our culture, policies, and
relationships with our stakeholders. Integrity and
transparency are key to our corporate governance
practices and performance, and ensure that we gain and
retain the trust of our stakeholders at all times.

OUR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PHILOSOPHY

e Corporate governance standards should go beyond the
law and satisfy the spirit of the law, not just the letter of
the law.

® The Board and the Management are the trustees of the
shareholders' capital and not the owners.

e Ensure transparency and maintain a high level of
disclosure.

e Distinguish clearly between personal conveniences and
corporate resources.

e Communicate externally and truthfully about how the
Company is run internally.

¢ Have a simple and transparent corporate structure driven
solely by business needs.

Our corporate governance focuses on the interests of
employees and other stakeholders and their roles in
contributing to the long-term success and performance

of the Company. Our governance framework emphasizes
fairness and transparency based on sound legal,
regulatory and institutional frameworks and ensures a

fair and equitable treatment of shareholders. Promoting
the participation of stakeholders in effective corporate
governance, ensuring timely and accurate disclosures in all
material matters including the financial affairs, performance,
ownership, and governance of the Company through an
active, engaged and accountable Board endorses our
commitment to leadership by example and excellence.

=)

CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

Board as a trustee

Safeguard the shareholder's
capital as trustee, and not as
its owner

Responsible Leadership

ensuring independence of the
Board and effectiveness of the
Management

Effective corporate
governance

Build simple and transparent
processes driven by business
needs of all stakeholders

Fairness and excellence

Be objective and ethical, and
deliverthe besttoearntrustand
respect from our stakeholders

Statutory and Legal

Satisfy both the spirit and

compliance the letter of the law in all our
actions and disclosures

Integrity and Ensure  transparency and

transparency maintain a high level of integrity

Relationship with
stakeholders

Communicate frequently with
stakeholders, including clients,
shareholders and
stock markets

investors,

Exploring Values and Principles.

Building Trust

At Amber, we strive to achieve consistent progress

by harnessing potential business opportunities while

contributing to the betterment of our stakeholders. By

integrating values and ethics in our business, we are able

to enhance business profitability, returns to shareholders

and customer products. We are focused on embedding

value-driven principles and quality standards across
the organisation. Thereon, helping us to build trust with
investors and the community. We ensure reliability and

relevance of our industry presence within constant
supervision and guidance of a strong and robust leadership
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team. Under their supervision, we make constant

amendments to adapt to the changing scenario through |ndependent Directors
optimising costs and fuller utilisation of our capacities and on Our Board

L
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the resources available to us. We ensure cost-optimisation

while also setting new industry benchmarks.

Board of Directors

Our Board of Directors improved its composition, oversight,
and governance processes, serving our commitment to
succession planning and effective corporate oversight. The

Board Committees

Board has undergone substantial renewal in recent years to

improve the representation of financial services, regulatory,
financial reporting, business operations, and corporate
governance skills and experiences on the Board.

Code of Business Conduct

At Amber, our employees are expected to maintain Executive Directors

ethical conduct, with a high degree of personal integrity,
in accordance with Amber's Code of Business Conduct.
Employees take mandated training every year to ensure they

are aware of their responsibilities. This includes adhering to
regulations around lobbying in the jurisdictions where we
operate and reporting all lobbying activities as required.

Ethical Practices Nominee &
Non Executive Director

The Company believes in promoting a fair, transparent,

ethical and professional work environment by upholding

the highest standards of ethics, professionalism, honesty
and integrity. It is dedicated to creating a culture where all
employees can feel comfortable and raise concerns about
any undesirable practice or instance of wrongdoing. Without
fear of retaliation or victimisation, the organisation provides
a forum for Directors and employees. This forum facilitates
sharing of material internally that they believe demonstrates
serious malpractice, impropriety, abuse, or wrongdoing

within the Company. Furthermore, directors and workers
are assured that fast action will be taken to investigate
complaints raised in good faith.

Board Committees

e Audit Committee

e Nomination and Remuneration Committee
* Risk Management Committee

e Stakeholder Relationship Committee

e Corporate Social Responsbility Committee
e Executive Committee

4
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MEET THE BOARD
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Mr. Jasbir Singh
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

DOA: 25 August 2017

Mr. Daljit Singh
Managing Director

DOA: 25 August 2017

Mr. Manoj Kumar Sehrawat
Nominee Director

DOA: 12 January 2017

Dr. Girish Kumar Ahuja
Independent Director

DOA: 20 September 2017

Ms. Sudha Pillai
Independent Director

DOA: 20 September 2017

Mr. Satwinder Singh
Independent Director

DOA: 20 September 2017
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CORPORATE

INFORMATION

Mr. Kartar Singh
Chairman Emeritus

Mr. Jasbir Singh

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Daljit Singh

Managing Director

Mr. Manoj Kumar Sehrawat
Nominee Director

Dr. Girish Kumar Ahuja
Independent Director

Mr. Satwinder Singh
Independent Director

Ms. Sudha Pillai
Independent Director

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Mr. Jasbir Singh

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Daljit Singh

Managing Director

Mr. Sanjay Arora

Chief Executive Officer —
Electronics Division

Mr. Udaiveer Singh

Chief Executive Officer -
Mobility Application Division
Mr. Sachin Gupta

Chief Executive Officer -
RAC and CAC Division

Mr. Sudhir Goyal
Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Konica Yadav
Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer

REGISTERED OFFICE

C-1, Phase Il, Focal Point,
Rajpura Town: 140401, Punjab

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Walker Chandiok& Co. LLP
Chartered Accountant

7" Floor, Plot No. 19A, Sector 16A;
Noida: 201301, Uttar Pradesh

REGISTRAR & SHARE
TRANSFER AGENT

KFin Technologies Limited
having its Registered Office:
Karvy Selenium, Tower B, Plot
No. 31 & 32, Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Serilingampally
Hyderabad, Rangaredd;;
Telangana, 500032

Tel: 040 - 67161527

Fax No.: 040 - 23420814

Email: einward.ris@kfintech.com
Website: www.kfintech.com

CORPORATE OFFICE

15t Floor, Universal Trade Tower,
Sector 49, Sohna Road,
Gurugram, 122018, Haryana

KEY BANKERS/LENDERS
TO OUR COMPANY

Axis Bank Limited

Bajaj Finance Limited

Citi Bank N.A.

DBS Bank Limited

Federal Bank

HDFC Bank Limited

ICICI Bank Limited

IDFC First Bank Limited

Indusind Bank Limited

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited

RBL Bank Limited

Shinhan Bank

Siemens Financial Services Private
Limited

Standard Chartered Bank

Tata Capital Financial Services Limited
Yes Bank Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

INDIAN ECONOMY

Financial year ("FY") 2022 started with the country being hit
by the second wave of the pandemic which saw lockdowns
and restrictions being re-imposed across states for 2-3
months. The Indian economy faced repeated waves of
infection, supply-chain disruptions and, more recently,
inflation have created particularly challenging times for
policy making. However, with the gradual unlocking and
mass vaccination drives led the economy finally started
showing signs of recovery. The GDP expanded at 8.7% in FY
2021-22 against a 6.6% contraction in 2020-21 reflecting a
positive rebound of economic activities.

Agriculture and allied sectors continued to show buoyancy
recording a growth of 4.1 % as compared to 3.6% in previous
year. Real GVA at Basic Prices is estimated at ¥ 135.22 Lakh
Crore in 2021-22, as against ¥ 124 Lakh or Crore in 2020-
21, showing a growth of 8.6%. Source:(https://www.pib.
gov.in/PressReleseDetailm.aspx?PRID=1788380)

The government launched Production-Linked Incentive
(PLI) scheme for 13 sectors with an outlay of ¥ 1.97
Lakh Crore aiming to make domestic manufacturing
globally competitive and to create global Champions in
manufacturing. The scheme for Air Conditioner industry
was named as "PLI for White Goods on AC (PLIWG-AC)".
The scheme expected to add 15-20% to the existing
manufacturing capacity and generate employment for over
3 million people by 2023. Under the scheme an incentive
of 4-6% will be provided on incremental sales of goods
manufactured in India over a period of five years to create
national manufacturing champions. This means that
minimum production in India because of PLI Schemes is
expected to be over USD 500 billion in 5 years.

Further the escalating geopolitical conflicts between
Russia and Ukraine has led to several economic sanctions
resulting in hike of energy prices, supply-chain disruptions,
and record inflation rates.

That said, capital spending and the government's fiscal
stimulus, which encourages private investment, are
expected to be the key contributors to India's economy.

OUTLOOK

Rocketing oil and commaodity prices globally will contribute
to higher inflation and a wider current account deficit.
The Indian government's approach of improving logistics
infrastructure, providing incentives to boost industrial
production, and taking steps to increase agricultural
income will help the country in faster recovery. Risks to
the outlook include uncertain global economic conditions,
potential new surges in COVID-19 cases, and sharp rises
in commodity prices. Furthermore, private investment
will be encouraged by large governmental infrastructure

s

improvements scheduled over the next two years.

As the labour market improves, private consumption will
increase. Forecasts assume a regular monsoon, which,
when combined with higher wheat prices, could raise
agriculture output, and increase farmers income.

Inflation is expected to rise to 5.8% in FY 2022 due to
increased oil costs. While monetary policy will remain
accommodative, the central bank may raise policy rates later
in the fiscal year as the federal funds rate in the United States
tightens and oil prices rise. Foreign direct investment inflow
is expected to be moderate amid rising global uncertainties
and tightening of global economic and financial conditions.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Room Air Conditioners (RACs)

As per Company estimates, in FY 2021-22 the Room Air
Condition (RAC) market size at Operating Price is valued at
17,290 Crore and RAC industry size at OEM Level is valued
at 12,160 Crore. The industry is growing owing to the rising
per capita income, the arrival of global and local players,
the emergence of massive infrastructure projects with
increased government and private sector investments, and
the development of rural areas. The Split Air Conditioner and
Window Air Conditioner industry is poised to grow double
digit way forward.

The outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic brought a downfall
in the air conditioner industry and hampered the sales of
ACs in the year 2020 due to strict lockdown, suspension of
economic activities, supply chain constraints and the social
distancing measures. The significant policies introduced by
the government brought confidence in the consumer’s mind
and expected market to normalize. The key market players
have taken significant steps to combat this situation and
improvise the sales volume and expected more to gain with
economic recovery going forward.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

“Amber” at Glance

“Amber" Enterprises India Limited is a comprehensive and
integrated solution provider to HVAC space. The Company
have diversified portfolio categorized under five divisions
namely:

1. RAC

2. Mobility (Air Conditioning solutions for Railways,
Metros, Defense, Bus & Commercial segment).

3. Motors
4. Electronics
5. Components (RAC+NON-RAC)

The Company has multiple manufacturing facilities across
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various states in India, strategically located in proximity to
customers enabling faster turnaround. It is also one of the
most backward-integrated manufacturers of ACs for static
as well as mobility applications.

Headquartered in  Gurugram, with state-of-the-art
manufacturing capabilities the Company delivers value
driven products to its customers. Amber has 23 state-of-
the-art manufacturing facility spread across 8 states in
India. The Company have also housed state of the art R&D
facilities which helps Amber stand tall in the industry.

Adding to its fold the Company this year had made two
strategic acquisitions i.e., 'Pravartaka Tooling Services
Private Limited" and ‘AmberPR Technoplast India Private
Limited'. With these synergies, the Company is geared
to provide more diversified range of backward integrated
solutions in injection molding tools and Components
including Cross Flow Fans (CFF) for industries such as
automotive, electronics & consumer durables including
RACs.

All the business divisions are ready to take advantage of
multiple opportunities and will endeavor to emerge more
stronger by capturing larger share of their respective
markets than before. We strongly feel that the potential
opportunities will strengthen our position in the domestic
market while also laying a strong foundation for exports
going forward.

BUSINESS DIVISIONS
RAC Division

Amberdesigns and manufactures complete RACs, including
Indoor Units (IDU), Window ACs (WDU) and Outdoor Units
(ODU) of Split ACs with specifications ranging from 1 ton
to 2 tons, across energy ratings and types of refrigerants.
The Company manufactures both fixed speed as well as
inverter ACs.

During the year it added new customers to its fold and
is in process of converting existing customers from the
first stage of gas filing to complete Built Units (CBUs). On
Commercial RAC front, the Company has added commercial
ductable and cassette ACs to increase its offerings for its
customers.

Mobility Application Division

Amber offers a wide range of mobility products, including
Roof Mounted AC for Mainline Coaches, AC & Refrigeration
solutions for Railways, Roof Mounted Loco Drivers' Cab
AC and Defence HVAC Products. Products under Roof
Mounted AC for Mainline Coaches segment include
Standard RMPU, LHB, Double Decker and Meter Gauge.
Products under Electronics & Refrigeration solutions for

Railways include Cold Unit for Pantry, Hot Case for Pantry
and Electronic Control Panel (Switchboard Cabinet).
Defence HVAC products including Defence Shelter ACs
and Vertical Slip on ACs.

During the year the Company have onboarded two new
global leaders as its customers and developed new
products for various industries. It has also gained traction
in Air Conditions for metro line coaches and won major
contract for metro AC projects.

Motor Division

Amber manufactures wide range of motors for various
HVAC products, fan coil units, AHU etc. These motors
have diverse applications ranging from Residential and
Commercial ACs, Coolers and many other.

During the year the Company had increased its product
offerings for its customers by adding new models for
both domestic and international markets. It also launched
energy efficient BLDC motors for RAC segment.

Electronics Division

The Company is one of the market leaders in manufacturing
Printed Circuit Board Assemblies (PCBAs). The Company
hold an impeccable record and rich experience in providing
solutions to home appliances and RAC market segment.

During the year,it also added new customers in the division
and has started manufacturing new age applications such
as smart wearables and hearables. It has further added
products for washing machine, refrigeration, BLDC fans
segment etc. The market for inverter ACs is anticipated to
be promising owing to the changing consumer behaviour
which will further increase strength of this division.

Components Division

Amber manufactures reliable functional RAC components
like Heat Exchangers, Copper System Tubing, Multi-
Flow Condensers, , Sheet Metal Components, Injection
Moldings, Cross Flow Fans, ODU Fans etc. The Company
also manufactures other Non-AC components like Vacuum
Formed Components, Plastic Extruded Sheets, Sheet
Metal Components, Injection Molding Components for
refrigerators, washing machine and microwave ovens.

The Company today covers 69% of the total value chain of
IDU and ODU for inverter SACs.

During the year the Company have added new products,
new customers and expanded its geographies to newer
market. It has made two new acquisitions for this division
i.e., Amber PR and Pravartaka Tooling which will foster
business traction and provide integrated business solutions
to our customers from this division.

S1HOd3d AHOLNLVLS
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GROWTH DRIVERS

Amber holds promising growth opportunities in future
owing to rising affordability, increasing technological
advancements, Adequate power infrastructure, shortening
of replacement cycle, lifestyle shift and changing standard
of living, towards more comfort living. The Company
hold around 26% of the total market share in the total
manufacturing footprint in the industry and has a potential
to grow exponentially in OEM/ODM business. The Company
is also looking forward to widening its product portfolio in
non-RAC consumer durables segments. Initiatives taken by
Government of India (Gol) to curb the import of electronics
through various tariff and non-tariff measures will create
new windows of opportunities in near future.

Low RAC penetration in India

The household penetration of RACs in India stands at
approx 7% but the sector carries immense growth potential
and shall witness a double-digit growth in the near future.
The enablers behind this growth story would be rise in per
capita income thereby allowing more disposable income
in hands of the customers, good summer season, rising
culture of Work from Home and rising urbanisation will
create additional demand for RACs.

India : Low penetration in RAC market

Ve

90% 91%

30% 30%

7% @ @

7%
®

India
Indonesia
Thailand
Global
Japan
China
Taiwan
Malayasia

Source: Nirmal Bang Institutional Equities Research

Growing urbanisation, rising proportion of affluent middle
class

Increasing disposable income, growing urbanisation and
easy availability of consumer finance are key growth drivers
for RAC segment. It has been witnessed that the consumer
preferences are changing fast and pushing manufacturers
to introduce new, innovative, and value-added products.
This segment of the population is the key generator of
consumer demand, and it is also the main driver of the RAC
market.

W)

Replacement demand is a key growth driver

With changing energy rating norms (more energy-efficient
products), wide range and a high installed base of window
RACs, the replacement demand is also quite strong. It has
been witnessed that the people are replacing window RACs
with split. This trend is expected to grow further leading to
expansion of domestic manufacturing capacities.

STRENGTHS

Strong product portfolio

We design and manufacture wide range of products
which includes RAC, RAC & Non-RAC components &
HVAC solutions for mobility applications. Our expertise in
manufacturing of RACs and its components has made us
one-stop solution provider for RAC industry. Additionally,
we manufacture Roof Mounted AC solutions for railway/
metro/bus/defence & telecom. We are witnessing huge
opportunity going ahead for Amber in the industry.

R&D and Innovation

At Amber, we believe in creating and providing high value
added and technology-driven components that will provide
opportunities to capture shifts in customer preferences
as well as evolving regulatory requirements, such as
heightened energy efficiency requirement. Our high value
added and innovative products, has helped us establish
ourselves as a preferred supplier to customers, allowing us
to strengthen our position with them and expand our share
of their supply needs. Our motto is to deliver innovative
products to our customers for which we are continuously
investing in R&D for new product developments and better
energy efficient products. We strive to be future ready with
the product portfolio to cater the increasing demand across
segments.

Backward Integration

At Amber, we manufacture entire range of components
needed for RAC and Non RAC applications through
exceling in product development and manufacturing
solutions with inhouse designing, tooling, and validating to
final assembling and testing capabilities. We are currently
serving 69% of the total manufacturing value chain (Barring
compressors, packaging, and C class items of inverter RAC.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

OPPORTUNITIES

PLI Scheme

We believe that the additional production capacity provided
by the PLI plan will have a tremendous multiplier effect and
will aid inthe development of strong supply chains for the AC
industry. The government's objective behind this initiative is
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to grow India's component ecosystem and raise domestic
value addition in component space thereby growing it from
present level of 25% to 75% in the next five to six years.
For the component ecosystem, this is going to be a game
changer. We're all set to take advantage of this opportunity
at Amber. We strongly believe that this opportunity will help
in expanding our position in the domestic market while also
establishing a strong foothold in the export market.

Proliferation of loT enabled AC systems

In the air conditioning market, the Internet of Things (loT)
is a game-changing technology, especially for residential
and commercial applications. By delivering an appropriate
reminder for equipment serviceability, loT-enabled AC
systems greatly reduce the chance of system downtime. It
also aids in lowering overall energy expenses and improving
overall system efficiency.

In addition, loT-enabled AC systems provide real-time
notifications for system maintenance and services, which
helps extend the product's entire lifecycle.

Furthermore, cloud-based technology provides a
consistent client experience by allowing this equipment to
be operated remotely. Traditional methods do not allow for
remote management of cloud-based systems, With the use
of internet connectivity, technicians may access systems
from anywhere and correct system flaws. As a result, overall
expenses and time spent on servicing and maintenance will
come down drastically.

Leading manufacturers are putting a lot of effort into
developing loT-enabled AC systems that will help them
expand their product line and market presence. Over the
projection period, loT-enabled air conditioners, as well as
their integration with cloud technologies, are expected
to provide a substantial potential for market players to
enhance consumer adoption of the equipment.

Potential FTA's

The government of India is in the process of negotiating
FTA's with various countries. The successful negotiations
will open up global market doors for Air Conditioner and its
components.

THREATS

Threats are the factors that can pose a risk to a Company's
business model due to changes in macroeconomic
circumstances and consumer attitudes. Threats can be
addressed, but they can't be eliminated.

Competitive Landscape

Existing as well as new market entrants in a limited
geography with limited customers (Brands).

Changing Geo- Political Scenarios

The world today is grappling with multiple trade and border
disputes. Any escalation of conflict or sanction between
countries puts an impact over the world market.

Inflation - Volatile Raw Material and Commodity cost

The change in price of raw materials and commodities
puts an additional threat to the Company's growth as
surge in commodity cost increases the cost of final product
thereby affecting the consumer demand. Further, currency
depreciation too brings a cause of concern.

Change in Customer Strategy

Frequent changes in customers strategy for outsourcing
and insourcing of product/components pose a threat.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

On aconsolidated basis, total revenue stood at% 4,20,639.73
in FY 2021-22 as compared to ¥ 3,03,052.01 Lakh in
FY 2020-21. Further, the Company achieved Operating
EBIDTA of ¥ 29,565 in FY 2021-22 as compared to
%22,858LakhinFY2020-21.PAT stoodat311,137.35 Lakhfor
FY 2021-22 as compared to ¥ 8,327.92 Lakh in FY 2020-21

Debtors Turnover Ratio * 3.53 3.15
Interest Coverage Ratio # 4.32 3.93
Current Ratio 1.13 1.31
Debt Equity Ratio 0.58 0.23
Operating EBITDA 7.03 7.54
Margin (%)

Net Profit Margin (%) 2.65 275

* Debtor Turnover Ratio = Revenue from Operations/
Average Debtors

# Interest Coverage Ratio = EBIT/Finance Cost

KEY RISK AND CONCERNS

At Amber, we have an effective risk management that
allows us to monitor the risk and manage it in the timely
manner. The effective risk management means attempting
to control, as much as possible for future outcomes
by acting proactively rather than reactively, effective
risk management offer the potential to reduce both the
possibility of a risk occurring and its potential impact.

S1HOd3d AHOLNLVLS
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The following table contains some risk factors and their mitigation:

Risks

Impact

Mitigation

Changing Market
Environment

Newer development in the competitive global business
environment and potential consolidation among
competitors may adversely impact the Company's
financial conditions.

The Company manufactures and develops
a diverse solution for HVAC industry as it
grows its business nationally and globally.
The Company have raised its market share
by strengthening its sales network, offer
competitive products and services, and to cut
fixed costs in order to expand its business and
enhance profitability.

Pricing pressures

Clients often pursue price reduction negotiations
with suppliers as their volumes increase. As a result,
continuous market share gains and a broad client
base are required to improve profitability. Also, sharp
fluctuations in  commodity prices and currency
can have an impact on Amber's gross margins.
Furthermore, because the Company engages in
foreign currency-denominated transactions in the
procurement of raw materials and parts, as well as the
sale of goods and services, currency exchange rate
fluctuations may have an impact on manufacturing
costs and sales performance.

To mitigate such currency exchange rate-related
risks, the Company undertakes short-term risk
hedging via forward exchange contracts and
similar instruments. Amber also undertakes
medium to long term measures to continuously
adjust  procurement and  manufacturing
operations and optimize them for changing
currency exchange rate trends, and to balance
imports and exports in each currency. Through
this, the Company works to realize a business
structure that is not greatly impacted by
fluctuations in currency exchange rates.

Technology risk

Technology transformation related to product and
services that differ from those anticipated by the
Company, or abrupt changes to the market such as
rapidly escalating competition, including from new
market entrants, may lead to the necessity to amend
or transform technology or product strategy.

The Company strives to create both consumer
and societal value, and it endeavour to produce
technology, products, and services that
continually contributetocustomerexpectations
through in house R&D capabilities.

Procurement risk

If the event management conditions at suppliers
end deteriorates, or in case of natural disasters or
accidents, the Company makes efforts to ensure that
raw materials, parts, and other items are supplied in
a stable and timely manner, and at reasonable prices.
This can be accomplished by diversifying its suppliers
and geographically dispersing sourcing, as well as
creating part commonalities and standardisation,
among other things. However, taking the measures
described above may be difficult in the short term, and
in the event of an unforeseen situation, the Company
may face shortages of raw materials and parts,
delivery delays, and other issues.

To mitigate the risk the Company and its
suppliers set prices of raw materials and
enable procurement at stable prices through
long-term contracts.
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Risks Impact Mitigation
Climate change Given the world's worsening environmental problems, | Amber takes every possible measure to prevent
and other if regulations covering the use and emissions of | environmental pollution from its business

environmental
issues

greenhouse effect-causing refrigerant gases, as well
as regulations pertaining to energy conservation,
become more stringent, there is a possibility of
increased costs required to comply with such
regulations. Furthermore, if responding adequately to
these regulations is difficult and delays occur, product
sales may be hampered, and smooth business

activities, including not only compliance with
regulations but also the establishment of even
stricter voluntary standards. Amber develops ®
and spreads energy-saving, high-efficiency
air conditioners with lower global warming
potential, as well as solutions for energy
efficiency throughout entire buildings. In this

S1HOd3d AHOLNLVLS

operations may suffer.

way, it is aggressively reducing greenhouse
gas emissions and protecting the global
environment.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Amber has always sought to implant the correct culture,
promote Company values, and maintain strong employee
identification as an organisation. Amber develops a
Personal Resources strategy that balances business
success, human advancement, and society contributions.
The HR policy also attempts to prepare the Company for
changes in its environment, in addition to its initiatives to
foster diversity. It thrives on predicting, developing, and
improving talents that are matched to its various business
lines and are suited to a changing market.

In addition to the typical reactive strategy, the Company
has invested in the establishment of a proactive culture
of occupational health, safety, and security. The variables
that contribute to safety are reinforced by this proactive
culture.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an adequate internal control framework
in place. It is designed to provide a reasonable assurance
with regard to maintenance of proper accounting records
thereby ensuring reliable financial reporting, monitoring
operations and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. The Company has documented policies and

procedures covering all financial and operating functions.
The Audit Committee regularly reviews significant internal
audit findings and closure of all agreed actions and progress
of the audit plan. The Committee monitors the adequacy
and reliability of financial reporting, internal control and risk
management systems.

Internal audit also carries out independent testing of
operating effectiveness of internal controls. Based on the
assessment carried out and evaluations of the results, the
Board of Directors are of the opinion that the Company had
an robust Internal Financial Controls system that operated
effectively as of 31 March 2022.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The Statement in this Management Discussion and
Analysis Report describing the Company's objectives,
projections, estimates, expectations, or predictions may
be 'forward looking statements’ within the meaning of
applicable laws and requlations. Actual results might differ
substantially or materially from those expressed or implied.
Important developments that could affect the Company's
operations include demand-supply conditions, changes
in Government and international regulations, tax regimes,
economic developments within and outside India and other
factors such as litigation and labour relations.
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Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 32" ANNUAL REPORT on the Business and Operations of the Company along with
the audited financial statements (standalone and consolidated) for the financial year ended 31 March 2022. The consolidated
performance of the Company and its Subsidiaries have been referred to wherever required.

1.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY / PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY (STANDALONE & CONSOLIDATED)

The standalone and consolidated financial highlights of the Company are as follows:

(Amount in Lakh)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
For the financial year ended For the financial year ended

ML ENrz] 31 March 2021 I EXZZ] 31 March 2021
Revenue from operations 3,13,760.43 2,29,590.56 4,20,639.73 3,03,052.01
Other Income 3,298.61 2,992.20 3,323.22 3,309.99
Total Income from operations 3,17,059.04 2,32,582.76 4,23,962.95 3,06,362.00
Total Expenses 3,10,079.44 2,24,831.24 4,08,530.80 2,94,348.76
Profit Before Tax (PBT) 6,979.60 7,751.52 15,427.15 12,013.24
Tax Expense
Current Tax 1,215.57 1,714.48 3,087.72 3,164.57
Deferred Tax 954.01 881.35 1,207.13 520.75
Profit After Tax (PAT) 4,810.02 5,155.69 11,132.30 8,327.92
Earnings Per Equity Share (%)
Basic 14.28 15.77 32.41 24.96
Diluted 14.28 15.77 32.41 24.96

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Total consolidated revenue from operations in the
financial year 2021-22 was ¥ 4,20,639.73 Lakh as
compared to ¥ 3,03,052.01 Lakh in financial year
2020-21.

Consolidated Profit before tax for the financial year
2021-22 was % 15,427.15 Lakh as compared to
%12,013.24 Lakh in the financial year 2020-21.

Consolidated Profit after tax for the financial year
2021-22 was ¥ 11,132.30 Lakh as compared to
% 8,327.92 Lakh in the financial year 2020-21.

Standalone revenue from operations in the
financial year 2021-22 was % 3,13,760.43 Lakh as
compared to ¥ 2,29,5690.56 Lakh in financial year
2020-21.

Standalone Profit before tax for the financial year
2021-22 was % 6,979.60 Lakh as compared to
% 7,751.52 Lakh in financial year 2020 -21.

Profit after tax for the financial year 2021-22 was
% 4,810.02 Lakh as compared to ¥ 5,155.69 Lakh
in the financial year 2020-21.

On consolidated and standalone basis the capital
expenditure on tangible assets, including rights
of use of assets but excluding assets acquired
pursuant to business combination, was made of
¥ 4459216 Lakh and ¥ 31,280.91 Lakh
respectively and;

No material changes or commitments have
occurred between the end of the financial year
and the date of this Report which affect the

financial statements of the Company in respect of
the reporting year.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the financial year 2021 - 22, are prepared in
compliance with provisions of Section 129 (3) of the
Act read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act"), Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS")
and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, as amended [“SEBI (LODR) Regulations”] which
shall be placed before the members in the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting (“AGM").

To comply with Section 129 (3) of the Act, a statement
containing the salient features of the financial
statements of subsidiary/ associate/ joint venture
companies is provided as Annexure in Form AOC — 1 to
the consolidated financial statements of the Company
and therefore not repeated hereby to avoid duplication.

In accordance with Section 136 of the Act, the audited
financial statements including the consolidated
financial statements and related information of your
Company and audited accounts of subsidiaries
are available on the website of your Company at
www.ambergroupindia.com.

During the year, IL JIN Electronics (India) Private Limited
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(“IL JIN") and Sidwal Refrigeration's Industries Private
Limited (“SIDWAL"), subsidiaries of the Company, were
material subsidiaries, as per SEBI (LODR) Regulations.
In terms of the provisions of Regulation 24(1) of the
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, appointment of one of the
Independent Directors of the Company on the Board
of material subsidiaries was applicable only to said
subsidiaries.

Independent Audit Reports of the material subsidiaries
are available on the website of the Company. The
Secretarial Audit report of these material subsidiaries
does not contain any qualification, reservation or
adverse remark or disclaimer. The Company monitors
performance of subsidiary companies, inter alia, by the
following means:

Financial statements, in particular investments
made by subsidiary companies, are reviewed
quarterly by the Company's Audit Committee;

Minutes of Board meetings of subsidiary
companies are placed before the Company's
Board regularly;

A statement containing all significant transactions
and arrangements entered into by subsidiary
companies is placed before the Company's Board;

The Company's Policy for determining Material
Subsidiaries is available on the website of the
Company and can be accessed at Web-link:
http://www.ambergroupindia.com/policy-
determination-material-subsidiary-governance-
subsidiary.

Furthermore, pursuant to Regulation 24(A) of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, read with Guidance note on Annual
Secretarial Compliance Report issued by Institute of
Company Secretaries of India, the Secretarial Audit
report (MR-3) of Material Subsidiaries i.e. IL JIN and
SIDWAL forms part of the Annual Report.

CAPACITY EXPANSION, NEW PROJECTS & STRATEGIC
ALLIANCES

During the financial year, the Company have started
three new facilities one in Kadi (Ahmedabad), other in
Supa (Pune) and third one in Chennai (Kancheepuram)
for expanding Room Air Conditioners and Components
capacities alongwith geographical reach.

Kadi (Ahmedabad)

The mass production has started in the month of
October 2021 at Kadi Plant in Ahmedabad which
is a rented premises and wherein the Company is
manufacturing Injection Moulding components.

Supa (Pune)

The parts supply has started in the month of December

2021 atSupa Plantin Pune, whichis an owned premises
and wherein the Company in Phase 1 is manufacturing
Sheet Metal components.

Chennai (Kancheepuram)

The mass production has started in the month of
December 2021 at Chennai Plant in Kancheepuram,
which is a rented facility and wherein the Company in
Phase 1 is manufacturing Sheet Metal components
and Heat Exchangers.

Under Progress Facility

Sri City (Andra Pradesh

The construction work is under progress at Sri City
Plant in Andra Pradesh, which is an owned premises
and wherein the Company shall manufacture
Complete FG IDU + ODU with backward integration AC
manufacturing facility.

The mass production is expected to start by October,
2022.

DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public under Section
73 and 76 of the Act and rules made thereunder and
no amount of principal or interest was outstanding as
at the end of financial year 2021-22. There were no
unclaimed or unpaid deposits lying with the Company.

TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE

Details with regard to amount transferred to reserves
are provided in the notes to financial statements
forming part of this Annual Report.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

During the financial year 2021-22 under review,
there was no change in the nature of business of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates.

The Company added few segments in its line of
products which are manufactured by its Subsidiary
Companies.

DIVIDEND AND DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The Board of Directors didn't recommend any Dividend for
the financial year 2021 - 2022, due to ongoing expansion of
manufacturing facilities and new acquisitions.

The Board of Directors of the Company had approved
and adopted the Dividend Distribution Policy containing
all the necessary details as required by the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations. The Dividend shall be payable
in accordance with the Dividend Distribution Policy,
which is available on the website of the Company at

CI
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http://www.ambergroupindia.com/dividend-distribution-
policy/ and is also provided as “Annexure — A". There
has been no change in the said policy during the year.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of
your Company shall remain closed from 23 July 2022
to 29 July 2022 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of
the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

ACQUISITIONS

Amber Enterprises USA Inc.

The Company has invested 100,000 USD in Amber
Enterprises USA Inc. and has been allotted 100,000
common stock at par value of USD 1 per share.

Post the allotment of shares as referred above, Amber
Enterprises USA Inc. has become Wholly Owned
Subsidiary of Amber Enterprises India Limited w.e.f 13
September 2021.

AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited (formerly
known as Pasio India Private Limited (“AmberPR")

The Company has entered into the definitive
agreements with AmberPR Technoplast India Private
Limited (“AmberPR") and acquired 73% stake in the
equity share capital of AmberPR, which is engaged
in the business of (i) cross flow fans and its plastic
parts, (ii) fans and fan guard for outdoor units of room
air conditioners, (i) plastic parts for water dispenser
and refrigeration applications (other than automobile
industry) and (iv) plastic parts for seats of trucks,
tractors and buses (“Business”). The Business is
being acquired by AmberPR from Pee Aar (“a private
limited Company”), one of the leading cross flow
fans manufacturer in India along with other plastic
components for various industries, on slump sale
basis during the financial year 2021-22.

By virtue of the aforesaid acquisition of 73% stake in
equity share capital of AmberPR, the AmberPR has
become a subsidiary of the Company with effect from
1 December 2021.

Pravartaka Tooling Services Private Limited

The Company has entered into the definitive
agreements with Pravartaka Tooling Services Private
Limited (“Pravartaka”) and acquired 60% stake in the
equity share capital of Pravartaka, which is engage in
the business of injection mould tool manufacturing
and injection moulding components manufacturing for

10.

various industries ("Business”). The Business is being
acquired by Pravartaka from Pioneer Tooling Services
(“Pioneer") one of the leading injection moulding tool
maker and injection moulding components maker
for consumer durable, automotive and electronics
industry on slump sale basis in the financial year
2021-22.

By virtue of the aforesaid acquisition of 60% stake in
equity share capital of Pravartaka, the Pravartaka has
become a subsidiary of the Company with effect from
1 February 2022.

CREDIT RATING

CRISIL

During the financial year, CRISIL Ratings has upgraded
on the bank facilities of Amber Enterprises India
Limited (Amber; part of the Amber group) to 'CRISIL
AA-/Stable/CRISIL A1+ from ‘CRISIL A+/Positive/
CRISIL A1'. The details of rating action are mentioned
below:

Rating Action

Total Bank Loan|%
Facilities Rated

1285 Cr
2935 Cr)

CRISIL AA-/Stable (Upgraded
from 'CRISIL A+ / Positive' and
outlook revised to ‘Stable’)

(Enhanced from

Long term rating

Shorttermrating |CRISIL A1+ (Upgraded from
‘CRISIL A1)

1 Cr =10 million

ICRA Limited

The Rating Committee of ICRA, has assigned a long-
term rating of [ICRAJAA- (pronounced ICRA double A
minus) (“Rating”) to Amber Enterprises India Limited
("Amber"). The Outlook on the long-term rating is
“Stable". It reflects ICRA's expectation that despite the
adverse impact of Covid-19 in the near-term, Amber is
expected to maintain a strong credit profile, supported
by its resilient business profile, low external borrowings,
comfortable capital structure and healthy liquidity
position. The details of rating action are mentioned
below:
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12.

13.

Rating Action

Instrument Current Rated | Rating Action
Amount
Issuer Rating - [ICRA] AA-
(stable)
SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has beennoincrease/ decrease in the Authorised
Share Capital and issued and paid-up share capital of
the Company during the year under review.

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is
% 45,00,00,000/- (Rupees Forty Five Crore only) divided
into 4,50,00,000 (Four Crore Fifty Lakh) equity shares of
% 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

The issued and paid-up share capital of the Company
as on 31 March 2022 was % 33,69,37,310 divided into
3,36,93,731 equity shares of ¥ 10 each.

The Company has only one class of equity shares with
face value of ¥ 10 each, ranking pari passul.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

During the year under review, the Company was not
required to transfer any funds to Investor Education
and Protection Funds (IEPF).

FINANCIAL LIQUIDITY

On standalone basis cash and cash equivalent as at
31 March 2022 was % 77,411.53 Lakh (previous year
% 47,643.16 Lakh). The Company's working capital
management is robust and involves a well-organised
process which facilitates continuous monitoring
and control over receivables, inventories and other
parameters. Due to the nature of the business, the
Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining
availability under committed facilities. Management
monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity
position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of
expected cash flows. The Company takes into account
the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.
In addition, the Company's liquidity management policy
involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and
considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet
these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against
internal and external regulatory requirements and
maintaining debt financing plans.

Note: Cash and cash equivalents mentioned above
includes other bank balances, bank deposits with more
than 12 months maturity and investment in bonds.

14.

15.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEMES

The Company had introduced an employee stock
option plan namely "Amber Enterprises India Limited
- Employee Stock Option Plan 2017" ("ESOP 2017"/
“Plan") to attract, retain, incentivise and motivate the
Company's and its Subsidiaries’ eligible employees
and enable them to participate, directly or indirectly,
in the long-term growth and success of the Company.
Also, such tools act as a retention mechanism by
enabling employee participation in the business as its
active member.

The total Options reserve under ESOP 2017 are
10,710,800 (Ten Lakh Ten Thousand Eight Hundred)
Options.

Pursuant to the said ESOP 2017, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee at its meeting held
on 19 April 2021 has approved the Grant of 220,000
stock options under Amber Enterprises India Limited
- Employee Stock Option Plan 2017 ("ESOP 2017"/
“Plan") to eligible employees (present and/or future) of
the Company and its subsidiary Company (ies) from
time to time in one or more tranches.

Disclosures on details of options granted and
other details as required under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014 read with Securities
and Exchange Board of India circular no. CIR/ CFD/
POLICY CELL/2/2015 dated 16 June 2015 are set out
in Annexure B to this Report. Further, details of options
granted are included in the notes to accounts forming
part of standalone financial statements.

The Company has received a certificate from Amit
Chaturvedi & Associates, Secretarial Auditors that
the ESOP 2017 for grant of stock options has been
implemented in accordance with the SEBI Regulations
and the resolution passed by the members in their
general meeting and via postal ballot. The certificate
would be placed/available at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting for inspection by the members.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In line with the requirements of the Act and SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, the Company has formulated
a Policy on Related Party Transactions which is also
available on the Company's website at http://www.
ambergroupindia.com/policy-materiality-dealing-
related-party-transactions  The Policy intends to
ensure that proper reporting, approval and disclosure
processes are in place for all transactions between the
Company and Related Parties.

CI
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17.

All related party transactions are placed before the
Audit Committee and also the Board for approval. Prior
omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained
as per SEBI (LODR) Regulations for the transactions
which are foreseen and are repetitive in nature.

Further, during the year, the Company has entered
into contract or arrangement or transaction with the
Related Parties which could be considered material
in accordance with the Policy of the Company on
materiality of Related Party Transactions and as per
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations. These transactions are
in the ordinary course of business and are on arm's
length basis. In view of the above, disclosure in Form
AOC-2 is not applicable.

For details on Related Party Transactions, you may
refer Notes to financial statements forming part of the
Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND
INVESTMENTS

Particulars of loans, guarantees given and investments
made during the year in accordance with Section
186 of the Act forms part of the notes to the financial
statements provided in this Annual Report. All the loans,
guarantees & securities are given and investments are
made for the Business purpose.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The Company has following wholly owned subsidiaries
and subsidiaries :

WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

1. PICL (India) Private Limited;

2. Appserve Appliance Private Limited

3. Sidwal Refrigeration Industries Private Limited
4

Amber Enterprises USA Inc.

SUBSIDIARIES
1. IL JIN Electronics (India) Private Limited,;
2. EVER Electronics Private Limited.

3. AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited
(Formerly known as Pasio India Private Limited)

4. Pravartaka Tooling Services Private Limited

The Company shall make available the financial
statements of the subsidiary companies to any
member of the Company who may be interested in
obtaining the same. Further, the financial statements
of the subsidiaries are also available on the website
of the Company viz. www.ambergroupindia.com.
To comply with the provisions of Section 129 of the

Act, a separate statement containing salient features
of financial statements of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures of the Company forms part of
consolidated financial statements.

Wholly Owned Subsidiaries
PICL (India) Private Limited (“PICL")

PICL, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company was
incorporated as a Private Limited Company on 13
September 1994 under the provisions of Companies
Act, 1956 having its Registered Office in New Delhi
with the business of manufacturing various kinds
of fractional horse power motors for WACs, SACs,
Commercial air conditioners and other applications.

During financial year 2021 - 22, PICL has reported total
income of ¥ 23,673.10 Lakh and Net Profit of ¥ 886.95
Lakh.

Appserve Appliance Private Limited (“Appserve")

Appserve, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
was incorporated as a Private Limited Company on 4
December 2017 under the provision of the Act having
its Registered Office in Rajpura, Punjab with the object
of carrying out the business of manufacture, repair,
maintenance, installation, assembly and routine
servicing activities of all kinds of white goods i.e. RACs,
washing machines, refrigerators, consumer durables
and other similar equipment and components and to
establish repair shops for the same along with other
related activities.

During financial year 2021 - 22, Appserve has reported
% 0.14 Lakh income and booked a net loss of ¥ (3.18)
Lakh.

IL JIN Electronics (India) Private Limited (“IL JIN")

IL JIN, a subsidiary of the Company was incorporated
as a Private Limited Company on 11 September 2001
under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956 having
its Registered Office in New Delhi. The Company
holds 70% stake in the equity share capital of IL JIN.
IL JIN is engaged in the business of manufacturing,
assembling, dealing, importing and exporting of
electronic assembled printed circuit boards for Air
conditioners and other consumer durables, electronics
and automobiles.

During financial year 2021 - 22, IL JIN has reported
total income of ¥ 42,730.48 Lakh and Net profit of
% 113.46 Lakh.

Ever Electronics Private Limited (“EVER")

EVER, a subsidiary of the Company was incorporated
as a Private Limited Company on 2 August 2004 under
the provisions of Companies Act, 1956 having its
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Registered Office in Pune, Maharashtra. The Company
holds 70% stake in the equity share capital of EVER.
EVER is engaged in the business of assembly of
electronics printed circuit boards for Air conditioners
and other consumer durables, electronics and
automobiles.

During financial year 2021 - 22, EVER has reported
total income of ¥ 22,380.21 Lakh and Net profit of
% 858.22 Lakh.

Sidwal Refrigeration Industries Private Limited
(“Sidwal")

Sidwal, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
was incorporated as a Private Limited Company on 16
August 1965 under the provisions of Companies Act,
1956 having its Registered Office in New Delhi and is
engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of
Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning equipment for
railways, metros, Defence, bus, telecom, commercial
refrigeration and related components for private and
government customers.

During financial year 2021 - 22, Sidwal has reported
total income of ¥ 29,095.02 Lakh and Net profit of
¥ 4,920.82 Lakh.

Amber Enterprises USA Inc.

Amber Enterprises USA Inc., is a corporation a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in the
state of Delaware, engage in the business of sales and
Marketing alongwith trading activities.

During the financial year 2021 -22, the Company has
invested 100,000 USD in Amber Enterprises USA Inc.
and has been allotted 100,000 common stock at par
value of USD 1 per share.

During financial year 2021 - 22, Amber Enterprises USA
Inc. has reported total income of ¥ 50.24 Lakh and Net
profit of ¥ 20.60 Lakh.

AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited (formerly
known as Pasio India Private Limited (“AmberPR")

AmberPR, a subsidiary of the Company was
incorporated as a Private Limited Company on 19
July 2013 under the provisions of Companies Act,
2013 having its Registered Office in New Delhi and is
engaged in the business of manufacturing of (i) cross
flow fans and its plastic parts, (i) fans and fan guard
for outdoor units of room air conditioners, (iii) plastic
parts for water dispenser and refrigeration applications
(other than automobile industry) and (iv) plastic parts
for seats of trucks, tractors and buses (“Business”).
The Business is being acquired by AmberPR from Pee
Aar (“a private limited Company"), one of the leading

cross flow fans manufacturer in India along with other
plastic components for various industries, on slump
sale basis during the financial year 2021-22.

During financial year 2021 - 22, AmberPR has reported
total income of ¥ 8,708.48 Lakh and Net profit of
%193.68 Lakh.

Pravartaka Tooling Services Private Limited
(“Pravartaka")

Pravartaka Tooling Services Private Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company was incorporated as a
Private Limited Company on 27 April 2021 under
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 having its
Registered Office in New Delhi and is engaged in the
business of manufacturing of injection mould tool
manufacturing and injection moulding components
manufacturing for various industries (“Business").
The Business is being acquired by Pravartaka from
Pioneer Tooling Services (“Pioneer”) one of the
leading injection moulding tool maker and injection
moulding components maker for consumer durable,
automotive and electronics industry on slump sale
basis in the financial year 2021-22.

For the Period ended 31 March, 2022 Pravartaka has
reported total income of ¥ 3703.34 Lakh and booked a
net loss of ¥ (738.97) Lakh.

None of the above named wholly owned subsidiaries
and subsidiaries declared any Dividend during the
financial year 2021-22.

A statement containing highlights of performance
of each subsidiary Company, salient features of their
financial statements for the financial year ended
31 March 2022 and their contribution to the overall
performance of the Company is provided in Form AOC
- 1 as "Annexure - C" and forms part of this Annual
Report and the consolidated financial statements of
the Company for the reference of the members. The
same is not being repeated here for the sake of brevity.

There are no companies which have ceased to be its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates companies
during the financial year.

17.1 MATERIAL SUBSIDIARIES

To comply with the provisions of Regulation 16(c)
of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, the Board of Directors
of the Company have approved and adopted a
Policy for determining material subsidiary and
as on 31 March 2022, IL JIN and Sidwal are the
material subsidiaries of the Company in terms of
the said policy. The policy on material subsidiary
has been uploaded on the website of the Company
at the Web-link: http: //www.ambergroupindia.

o
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com/policy-determination-material-subsidiary-
governance-subsidiary.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Board of Directors (the "Board") are responsible
for and committed to sound principles of Corporate
Governance in the Company. The Board's focus is on
the formulation of business strategy, policy and control.
Matters reserved for the Board are those affecting the
Company's overall strategic policies, finances and
shareholders. These include, but are not restricted
to, deliberation of business plans, risk management,
internal  control, preliminary announcements of
interim and final financial results, dividend policy,
annual budgets, major corporate activities such as
material acquisitions and disposals and connected
transactions.

The Board has delegated part of its functions and
duties to Executive committee and day-to-day
operational responsibilities are specifically delegated
to the management.

The Company has a professional Board with right mix
of knowledge, skills and expertise with an optimum
combination of Executive, Non-Executive and
Independent Directors including one Woman Director,
The Board provides strategic guidance and direction
to the Company in achieving its business objectives
and protecting the interest of the stakeholders. Your
Board is also supported by Six Committees viz. Audit
Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee,
Corporate  Social Responsibility ~ Committee,
Stakeholders' Relationship Committee, Executive
Committee of the Board and Risk Management
Committee.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel who were
Appointed/Re-appointed or have resigned during the
Year

Directors

A. Appointment of Mr. Arvind Uppal as an Additional
Director in the capacity of Non- Executive &
Independent Director

In order to promote good governance, the
Company was required to have diversified Board
which brings experience and provides their
valuable contribution towards the growth of the
Company. Therefore, to strengthen the existing
Board, Mr. Arvind Uppal was appointed as an
Additional Director on the Board in the capacity
of Non- Executive & Independent Director w.e.f 13
May 2022 for a period of 2 consecutive years.

Mr. Arvind Uppal has over thirty-one years
in the consumer industry with extensive
board experience. He held key positions in
top management, general management and
marketing across the geographies of Asia pacific
and Europe. Strategic thinker with a proven track
record of having turned around businesses.
Recognised as a game changer, having received
several accolades during his leadership roles
with an inherent passion to nurture and mentor
startups.

The Board opines that Mr. Arvind Uppal has
requisite integrity, expertise and experience
with capability to critically analyze each of the
Business segments and bring in more value to the
organisation as a whole.

The resolution for regularisation of his
appointment by the shareholders of the Company,
forms part of the Notice of 32nd Annual General
Meeting of the Company.

Re-appointment of Mr. Daljit Singh as a
Managing Director of the Company

Mr. Daljit Singh (DIN : 02023964) was appointed
as a Managing Director of the Company at the
Board meeting of the Company held on 25 August
2017 for a period of consecutive 5 years. His
present term is due for renewal on 24 August
2022.

Mr. Daljit Singh has been serving the Board
of Amber Enterprises India Limited ("Amber),
since 1 January 2008 and he has been serving
as Managing Director of the Company since
25 August 2017. With his in depth knowledge
and wide experience of 14 years, he has been
very instrumental in executing the strategy
of converting the Company into total solution
provider for HVAC industry.

Under his astute leadership, the Company could
not only become multi location organisation
in India but also diversify into various product
categories for India.

He has provided keen and commendable
contribution to overall growth of Amber. In
2016, he received "Entrepreneur of the Year”
award from Ludhiana Management Association.
In 2017, he played pivotal role in successful
completion of Initial Public Offering of the
Company. His leadership skills and meticulous
attention to execution, enabled the Company
towards operational excellence, technological
advancements, new product line up, and



AMBER ENTERPRISES INDIA LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

DIRECTOR'S REPORT 2021 - 22 (Contd.)

continuous innovation.

The present term of Mr. Daljit Singh is expiring
on 24 August 2022 and being eligible under
Section 196, 197 read with Schedule V, it would
be appropriate to re-appoint Mr. Daljit Singh for
a period of 5 consecutive years w.e.f. 25 August
2022. Therefore, the Board of Directors of the
Company, based on the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Board, has recommended to reappoint Mr. Daljit
Singh as Managing Director of the Company for
a period of five consecutive years w.e.f 25 August
2022.

The resolution for his re-appointment as a
Managing Director by the shareholders of the
Company, forms part of the Notice of 32nd Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

Resignation of Mr. Satwinder Singh from position
of an Independent Director

Mr. Satwinder Singh (DIN: 00164903), Independent
Director of the Company has resigned from the
Board of Directors w.e.f. 13 May 2022 at closing
business hours, due to his engagement in other
professional activities and there is no other
material reason for resignation.

Directors Liable to Retire by Rotation

In accordance with the provisions of the Act, not
less than 2/3rd (Two-third) of the total number of
Directors (other than Independent Directors) shall
be liable to retire by rotation. Accordingly, pursuant
to the Act read with Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. Jasbir Singh (DIN: 00259632) is
liable to retire by rotation and, being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

Declaration from Independent Directors

The Company has received declarations from all
the Independent Directors confirming that they
meet/continue to meet, as the case may be, the
criteria of Independence under sub-section (6) of
section 149 of the Act and Regulation 16(1) (b) of
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

In the opinion of the Board, Independent Directors
fulfill the conditions specified in the Act, Rules
made thereunder and SEBI (LODR) Regulations
and are independent of the management.

Also, the Independent Directors have complied
with the Code for Independent Directors prescribed
in Schedule IV of the Act and have confirmed that
they are in compliance with the Code of Conduct

19.
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for Directors and Senior Management personnel
formulated by the Company.

Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP")

In accordance with the provisions of Section
2(51) and 203 of the Act read with Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, following continued to be
the Key Managerial Personnel's of the Company

(@) Mr. Jashir Singh— Chairman & Chief
Executive Officer

(b) Mr. Daljit Singh — Managing Director
(c) Mr. Sanjay Arora — Chief Executive Officer
(Electronics Division)

(d) Mr. Udaiveer Singh — Chief Executive Officer
(Mobility Application Division)

(e) Mr. Sachin Gupta — Chief Executive Officer
(RAC and CAC Division)

(f)  Mr. Sudhir Goyal — Chief Financial Officer

(g) Ms. Konica Yadav — Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company holds minimum of 4 (four) Board
meetings in each calendar year with a gap of not more
than one hundred and twenty days between any two
consecutive Meetings. Additional meetings of the
Board/ Committees are convened as may be necessary
for proper management of the business operations of
the Company.

The agenda and Notice for the Meetings is prepared
and circulated in advance to the Directors. The Board
of Directors of the Company met 5 (five) times during
the financial year 2021-22 i.e. 19 April 2021, 22 May
2021, 7 August 2021, 30 October 2021 and 29 January
2022.

The necessary quorum was present at all the meetings.
The intervening gap between any two meetings was not
more than one hundred and twenty days as prescribed
by the Act. A detailed update on the Board & its
Committees, composition thereof, number of meetings
held during financial year 2021-22 and attendance of
the Directors at such meeting is provided in the Section
"Board of Directors" of "Corporate Governance Report”.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board had duly constituted following Committees,
which are in line with the provisions of applicable laws:

A, Audit Committee

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

CI
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C. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
D. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee
E. Risk Management Committee

F. Executive Committee

A detailed update on the composition, number of
meetings, attendance and terms of reference of
aforesaid Committees are provided in the section
"Committees of the Board" of “Corporate Governance
Report”.

MEETINGS OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

As per Schedule IV of the Act, Secretarial Standards-1
('SS-1") read with the Guidance Note on SS-1 and SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, the meeting of the Independent
Directors was held on 21 December 2021.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS

COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, annual evaluation of the Board, its
Committees and individual directors has been carried
out on the basis of Guidance Note on Board Evaluation
issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India
("SEBI").

To facilitate the evaluation process, Board and its
Committee's self-evaluation questionnaires were
circulated to the Board members and respective
Committee members and an online link was also
provided to the Board members and respective
Committee members wherein an option was provided
to the Board and Committee members to fill in the said
questionnaires online.

Basis the results of the aforesaid questionnaire and
feedback received from the Directors and respective
Committee members, the performance evaluation of
the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire
Board excluding the Director being evaluated. The
performance evaluation of the Executive Chairman and
Managing Director was carried out by the Independent

Directors. The Directors have expressed their
satisfaction with the evaluation process.
FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR THE

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

In compliance with the requirements of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, the Company has put in place
a familiarisation programme for the Independent
Directors to familiarise them with their roles, rights and
responsibility as Directors, working of the Company,
nature of the industry in which the Company operates,
business model etc. The details of the familiarisation

24.
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programme are explained in the Corporate Governance
Report. The same is also available on the website of
the Company at www.ambergroupindia.com

REMUNERATION POLICY

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Act
read with Rules made thereunder and Regulation
19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (“NRC") of your Board has
formulated a Remuneration Policy for the appointment
and determination of remuneration of the Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and
other employees of the Company. The NRC has also
developed the criteria for determining the qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of Directors and
for making payments to Executive and Non-Executive
Directors of the Company.

The NRCtakes into consideration the bestremuneration
practices in the industry while fixing appropriate
remuneration packages and for administering the
long-term incentive plans, such as ESOPs, ESOSs etc.

Further, the compensation package of the Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and
other employees is designed based on the set of
principles enumerated in the said policy.

Your Directors affirm that the remuneration paid
to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior
Management and other employees is as per the
Remuneration Policy of the Company.

The ratio of the remuneration of each of the Whole time
Director, Managing Director to the median of employees
remuneration as per section 197(12) of the Act, read
with Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
for the financial year under review forms part of this
report and provided as "Annexure — D".

The Remuneration Policy of the Company can be viewed
at the following link: http://www.ambergroupindia.
com/nomination-remuneration-policy.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL AND PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

25.1 PERSONNEL

As on 31 March 2022, total number of permanent
employees on the records of the Company were 1363.

Your Directors places on record their appreciation
for the significant contribution made by all
employees, who through their competence,
dedication, hard work, co-operation and support
have enabled the Company to cross new
milestones on a continual basis.
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25.2 PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information in respect of employees of the
Company required pursuant to Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 will be provided
upon request. In terms of Section 136 of the Act,
the report and financial statements are being
sent to the Members and others entitled thereto,
excluding the aforesaid disclosure. If any member
is interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such
member may write to the Company Secretary in
this regard.

26. AUDITORS
26.1 STATUTORY AUDITORS AND AUDITORS'

REPORT

M/s Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, were initially
appointed as the statutory auditors of the
Company, for the financial year 2012-13 and
2013-14, according to Section 224(1) of the
Companies Act, 1956.

Thereafter the Company, in compliance with the
“Transitional Period" appointed the M/s Walker
Chandiok & Co. LLP as per erstwhile Companies
Act, 1956 for the financial year 2014-15 and opted
for one-year transition period of the financial year
2014-15.

The Company further appointed M/s Walker
Chandiok & Co. LLP for one term of five
consecutive financial year 2015-16 to 2019-20.
M/s Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP have completed
only 8 years of continuous appointment as the
statutory auditors of the Company.

Thereafter, the Company appoint M/s Walker
Chandiok & Co. LLP for a second term of two
years for the financial year 2020-21 and 2021-22
from the conclusion of the 30th Annual General
Meeting till the conclusion of the 32nd Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held in the
year 2022.

They have audited the financial statements of the
Company for the financial year under review. The
observations of statutory auditor in their Report
read with relevant Notes to financial statements
are self-explanatory and therefore, do not require
further explanation.

The Statutory Auditor's report does not contain
any qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks
or disclaimers, which would be required to be
dealt with in the Boards' Report.

Further, there were no frauds reported by the
statutory auditor to the Audit Committee or the
Board under Section 143(12) of the Act.

The term of the Statutory Auditors i.e. M/s Walker,
Chandiok & Co LLP Chartered Accountants,
having Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013
is expiring in ensuing Annual General meeting of
the Company

As per Section 139(2) provision (i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, an audit firm which has
completed two terms of five consecutive years,
shall not be eligible for re-appointment as auditor
in the same Company for five years from the
completion of such term.

On the recommendation of Audit Committee and
Board, the Company now proposes to appoint
M/s S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP (Firm Registration
No: 301003E/E300005), Chartered Accountants,
as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the
first term of 5 Years from the conclusion of this
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the
37th Annual General Meeting of the Company to
be held in the year 2027.

The eligibility confirmation has been obtained
from M/s S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants.

Resolution seeking your approval on this item is
included in the Notice convening the 32nd Annual
General Meeting.

26.2 SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the
Act read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, the Company has appointed M/s. Amit
Chaturvedi & Associates, a practicing Company
Secretary firm (Certificate of Practice Number:
14332) to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the
Company for the financial year 2021 - 22.

The Company has annexed to this Board Report
as “Annexure - E", the Secretarial Audit Report
given by the Secretarial Auditor.

The Secretarial Audit report does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

26.3 INTERNAL AUDITOR

During the financial year under review, Company
has appointed M/s Deepak Gulati & Associates,
Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditor of the
Company for the financial year 2021-22.

Findings and reports by Internal Auditor
are reviewed by the Audit Committee about
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compliance with internal controls, the efficiency
and effectiveness of operations as well as key
process risks. The Audit Committee periodically
reviews internal audit plans, significant audit
findings and adequacy of internal controls.

26.4 COST AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) of
the Act read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
amendment(s) or re-enactments thereof) and all
other applicable rules, regulations and guidelines
framed thereunder as may be applicable from
time to time, the Board of Directors had on
the recommendation of the Audit Committee
appointed M/s. K.G. Goyal & Associates, a firm of
Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No.000024),
having its office at 4A, Pocket 2, Mix Housing
Scheme, New Kondli, Mayur Vihar — llI, New Delhi
— 110096 as Cost Auditor of the Company for the
financial year 2022 - 23.

The partners of the firm are holding a valid
certificate of practice under sub-section (1) of
Section 6 of Cost and Works Accountants Act,
1959.

The Company has received the certificate from
M/s. K.G. Goyal & Associates, Cost Accountants,
certifying they are independent firm of Cost
Accountants and having arm's length relationship
with the Company.

Cost Audit Report for the financial year 2021 — 22
is required to be filed by the Company with the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Company will do
the related compliance accordingly.

Further, the remuneration of ¥ 45,000/- excluding
applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses, if any
payable to the Cost Auditor needs to be approved
by the members at ensuing General Meeting of
the Company. The resolution seeking members'
ratification on this item is included in the Notice
convening the 32nd Annual General Meeting.

26.5 INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR

ADEQUACY

The Company has established an internal
control system, commensurate with the size,
nature, scale and complexity of its operations.
The Company has a robust and well embedded
system of internal controls. This ensures that all
assets are safeguarded and protected against
loss from unauthorised use or disposition and all

financial transactions are authorised, recorded
and reported correctly.

An extensive risk based programme of internal
audits and management reviews provides
assurance to the Board regarding the adequacy
and efficacy of internal controls. The internal audit
plan is also aligned to the business objectives of
the Company. Comprehensive policies, guidelines
and procedures are laid down for all business
processes. The internal control system has been
designedto ensurethatfinancial and other records
are reliable for preparing financial and other
statements and for maintaining accountability of
assets.

Significant features of the Company's internal
control system are:

. A well-established, independent, Internal
Auditteam operates in line with best-in-class
governance practices. It reviews and reports
to the Audit Committee about compliance
with internal controls, the efficiency and
effectiveness of operations as well as key
process risks.

* The Audit Committee periodically reviews
internal audit plans, significant audit findings
and adequacy of internal controls.

+  Systematic self-certification of adherence to
key internal controls, as part of control self-
assurance by process owners, monitors and
reviewers.

Adherence  with a comprehensive
information security policy and continuous
upgrades of the Company's IT systems for
strengthening automated controls.

. During the financial year, the internal controls
were tested and found effective, as a part of
the Management's control testing initiative.

The report on the Internal Financial Controls
issued by M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountant, the Statutory Auditors of
the Company is annexed to the Audit Report on
the financial statements of the Company and
does not contain any reportable weakness of the
Company.

The Internal Auditors of the Company have
direct access to the Audit Committee of the
Board. Furthermore, the Internal Auditors are
also responsible for following up the corrective
actions to ensure that satisfactory controls are
maintained.
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Accordingly, the Board, with the concurrence of
the Audit Committee and the Auditors is of the
opinion that the Company's Internal Financial
Controls were adequate and operating effectively
for the financial year ended 31 March 2022.

27. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY / FRAMEWORK

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 21(5) of
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, as amended, the top 1000
listed entities, determined on the basis of market
capitalisation, as at the end of the immediate previous
financial year shall constitute a Risk Management
Committee.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors has constituted
its Risk Management Committee to assist the Board
in fulfilling its responsibilities relating to evaluation
and mitigating various risks exposures that potentially
impact the Company.

At present the Risk Management Committee
comprises Ms. Sudha Pillai, Mr. Jasbir Singh and Mr.
Daljit Singh. Ms. Sudha Pillai is the Chairperson of the
Risk Management Committee.

The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy.
The primary objectives of the Risk Management
Policy include identification and categorisation of
potential risks, their assessment and mitigation. The
Risk Management Committee identifies, evaluates
and assesses the risks, understands the exposure of
risks and accordingly prepares and oversees execution
of appropriate risk mitigation plan. It has identified
Risk Management Units within the Company, the risk
profiles of which are constantly monitored and the
severity of risk is tracked, based on a systematic risk
rating methodology.

Also, to address IT related concerns like cyber threats
and data vulnerability, the Company has a robust IT
system and firewalls to mitigate any threats and risks.

The Company takes the below mentioned steps to

ensure the privacy and data security of users:

a) Using firewalls on the network.

b)  Antivirus is installed on each system to protect
from viruses, anti-malware, adware, worms and
Trojans.

c)  Strong password policy.

d) Automatic backup is scheduled for critical users.

e) Educating users by sending Information like
Security Policy of the Company and email
awareness mail periodically.

f)  External drives are blocked.

The Risk Management Committee and the Board

28.

have identifled some elements of risks, which,
according to them are crucial to the Company. Details
of these elements of risks have been covered in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, which form part
of this Annual Report and in Note 53 of the standalone
financial statements.

The Risk Management Committee maintains
comprehensive risk management systems to ensure
that the effectiveness of the mitigation action plan gets
assessed independently. The effectiveness of system
assessed and reviewed by the Risk Management
Committee on need basis and annually.

The Company's Board of Directors has overall
responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
the Company's risk management framework. The Note
53 of the standalone financial statements explains the
sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how
the entity manages the risk and the related impact in
the financial statements.

The details of the Risk Management Committee as
at 31 March 2022 along with its charter are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report, forming part of this
report.

In the opinion of the Board, there are no risks that may
threaten the existence of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND RELATED
MATTERS

The Company has an ongoing vibrant CSR program,
of which some of the notable ongoing investments
in preventing and promoting health care, woman
empowerment programs, promoting and providing
education and skill development for livelihood of youths
of our country, which supports the underprivileged,
socially and economically disadvantaged communities,
promoting preventive health care and contribution to
COVID -19 activities.

The Company has a duly constituted CSR Committee,
which is responsible for fulfilling the CSR objectives of
the Company. The composition of CSR committee is
as stated in the "Committees of the Board" section of
"Corporate Governance Report".

The Board of Directors have adopted a CSR policy which
isin line with the provisions of the Act. The CSR Policy of
the Company lays down the philosophy and approach
of the Company towards its CSR commitment. The
policy can be accessed at the website of the Company
i.e. www.ambergroupindia.com

During the financial year 2021 - 22, on recommendation
of CSR Committee Members, the Board approved
the CSR Budget amounting of ¥ 222.27 Lakh which
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amounts to 2% of the average net profits of previous
three financial years and against the above approved
budget ¥ 222.27 Lakh was spent on CSR projects/
activities in the financial year 2021 -22.

The annual report on our CSR projects/activities is
annexed as “"Annexure - F" forming part of this report.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Your Directors make the following statement in terms
of Section 134(3)(c) of the Act, which is to the best
of their knowledge and belief and according to the
information and explanations obtained by them :

(@) in the preparation of the annual accounts for
the financial year 31 March 2022, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material
departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of
the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
Company for the financial year 31 March 2022,

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care
for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts
on a going concern basis;

(e) the directors had laid down internal financial
controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and
were operative effectively; and

(f) the directors had devised proper systems to
ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operative effectively.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT
OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has always believed in providing
a safe and harassment free workplace for every
women employee working with the Company. The
Company always endeavours to create and provide
an environment that is free from discrimination and
harassment including sexual harassment.

31.

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual
harassment at workplace and, therefore, has in
place a policy on prevention of sexual harassment at
workplace. The said policy is in line with the provisions
of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and
the Rules thereunder.

The policy aims at prevention of harassment of
women employees contractors and lays down the
guidelines for identification, reporting and prevention
of sexual harassment. The Company has complied
with the provisions relating to the constitution of
the Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) and the
same has been duly constituted in compliance with
the Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
The said Committee is responsible for redressal of
complaints related to sexual harassment and follows
the guidelines provided in the policy.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment
complaints received and disposed of during the year:

a.  No. of complaints received: 0
b.  No. of complaints disposed of: NA
¢.  No. of complaints pending: 0

Also, the Company had organised sexual harassment
training programmes, from time to time, for its
employees and staff. The said training programmes
and workshop were helpful in creating necessary
awareness and to encourage cooperative environment
in the organisation.

VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Pursuant to the provision of Section 177(9) of the Act
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board
and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 22 of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, the Company has formulated
Whistle Blower Policy and established Vigil Mechanism
for the Directors and Employees of the Company to
report, serious and genuine unethical behavior, actual
or suspected fraud and violation of the Company's
code of conduct or ethics policy. It also provides
adequate safeguards against victimisation of persons,
who use such mechanism and makes provision for
direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The main objective of this policy is to provide a
platform to Directors and Employees to raise concerns
regarding any irregularity, misconduct or unethical
matters / dealings within the Company which have a
negative bearing on the organisation either financially
or otherwise.
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During the financial year 2021 — 22, no personnel of
the Company have been denied access to the Audit
Committee for reporting concerns, if any.

The Policy on Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower
Policy as approved by the Board is available on the
Company's website and can be accessed at the
Web-link: http://www.ambergroupindia.com/whistle-
blower-policy/

The Company has also adopted a Code of Conduct for
Directors and Senior Managerial Personnel which is
available on the website of the Company under the weblink:
http://www.ambergroupindia.com/code-conduct-
directors-senior-management-personnel.

This policy provides an additional channel to the
normal management hierarchy for employees to raise
concerns about any breach of the Company's Values
or instances of violations of the Company's Code of
Conduct. Therefore, it's in line with the Company's
commitment to open communication and to highlight
any such matters which may not be getting addressed
in a proper manner. During the financial year under
review, no complaint under the Whistle Blower Policy
was received.

INSIDER TRADING CODE

In compliance with the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 (‘the PIT Regulations') on prevention of insider
trading, the Company has revised its Code of Conduct
for regulating, monitoring and reporting of trading by
Designated Persons in line with the recentamendments
brought by SEBI in the PIT Regulations.

The said Code lays down guidelines, which advise
Designated Persons on the procedures to be followed
and disclosures to be made in dealing with the shares
of the Company and cautions them on consequences
of non-compliances.

The Company also has a Code of practices and
procedures of fair disclosures of unpublished
price sensitive information including a policy for
determination of legitimate purposes along with the
Institutional Mechanism for prevention of insider
trading and Policy and procedures for inquiry in case
of leak of unpublished price sensitive information
or suspected leak of unpublished price sensitive
information.

Further, the Company has put in place adequate and
effective system of internal controls and standard
processes have been set to ensure compliance with
the requirements given in these regulations to prevent
insider trading.

To increase awareness on the prevention of insider
trading in the organisation and to help the Designated
Persons to identify and fulfill their obligations, a
comprehensive campaign was run at all locations of
Amber. This included display of relevant and useful
content by way of posters on the notice boards and
other strategic locations, placement of standees
at common areas, key messaging through desktop
wallpapers and screensavers, orientation sessions
as part of regular employee induction, conducting
Company-wide workshops for all Designated Persons
by a subject matter expert, sending mails for closure of
trading window and submission of periodic disclosures,
etc.

DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT:
The following are the details that are required to be provided under Schedule V (F) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations :

Number of
Shareholders and
outstanding shares in
the suspense account
in the beginning of the

Number of
shareholders who
approached listed

entity for transfer of
shares from suspense

Number of
shareholders to
whom shares were
transferred from
suspense account

Aggregate number of
shareholders and the
outstanding shares in
the suspense account
lying at the end of the

The voting rights on
these shares shall
remain frozen till the
rightful owner of such
shares claims the

year (1 April 2021) account during the during the year year (31 March 2022) shares
year
None None None None None

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report
forms an integral part of this report and gives details of
the overall industry structure, economic developments,
financial and operational performance and state of
affairs of the Company's business and other material
developments during the financial year under review.

35. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

The Company's business responsibility ingrains the
spectrum of nine principles of National Voluntary
Guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India, along with their key elements. This
is enabled by a suite of frameworks, governance, social
objectives, policies, code of conduct and management

R
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36.

37.

38.

39.

systems integrated with the business process.

In terms of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, a separate
section on "Business Responsibility Report” forms part
of this Annual Report and is given in “Annexure — G".

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company believes that executing strategy
effectively and generating shareholder value over
the long term requires high standards of corporate
governance. To ensure good corporate governance,
the Company ensures that its governance framework
incorporates the amendments introduced in the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations from time to time and the same
are complied with on or before the effective date.

In terms of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, a separate
section on "Corporate Governance" with a compliance
report on corporate governance and a certificate from
M/s. Amit Chaturvedi & Associates, a firm of Company
Secretaries, Secretarial Auditors of the Company
regarding compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Governance, has been provided in this Annual Report
and are annexed as "Annexure H" and Annexure -1".

A certificate of the CEO and CFO of the Company
in terms of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, inter-alia,
confirming the correctness of the financial statements
and cash flow statements, adequacy of the internal
control measures and reporting of matters to the Audit
Committee, is also annexed.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS,
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

There are no material changes and commitments
affecting the financial position of the Company that
have occurred between the end of the financial year of
the Company to which the financial statements relate
and the date of the report i.e. between 1 April 2022 to
13 May 2022, except those included in this report.

LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES

The Company's shares are listed on BSE Limited
("BSE") and the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited ("NSE").

GREEN INITIATIVE

Electronic copies of Annual Report of financial year
2021 — 22 and the Notice of 32nd Annual General
Meeting are sent to all members whose email
addresses are registered with the Company/ depository
participant(s). For members who have not registered
their email addresses, physical copies are sent in the

40.

permitted mode.

Members are requested to registered their e-mail
addresses with their respective Depository Participants
in order to contribute to above Green Initiative program.
Further, the Company is providing e-voting facility
to all members to enable them to cast their votes
electronically on all resolutions set forth in the Notice
of 32nd Annual General Meeting. The instructions
for e-voting are provided in the Notice of the Annual
General Meeting.

HUMAN RESOURCES
INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

As of 31 March 2022, Your Company employed 1397
fulltime employees. Your Company believes that
its employees are its core strength and accordingly
development of people and providing a 'best-in-class'’
work environment is a key priority for the Organization
to drive business objectives and goals. Robust HR
policies are in place which enables building a stronger
performance culture and at the same time developing
current and future leader.

DEVELOPMENT  AND

40.1 CREATING A NEW PERFORMANCE CULTURE

Performance for the Company is the sum total
of value creation within the Organisation. The
leadership focus is such that performance is
measured on a continuous basis and performance
culture is driven to make every month a successful
month. The significant overall improvement in
the performance of the Company during the last
two years is a testimony to the leadership and
management focus on this performance driven
culture which has resulted in highly engaged and
motivated teams.

40.2 TAKING EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT TO NEXT
LEVEL

The Company has a rich legacy of nurturing and
promoting talent from within the Organisation
thereby creating a healthy and vibrant work
culture across the Company. “Leadership through
Innovation” is one such engagement forum
which engages employees at a national level
competition across all locations to showcase
their innovative ideas and skills. This platform
challenges employees to question status-quo at
the work place and to take a leap of faith towards
our journey of innovation.

Several cultural and social programmes are
organised within the Company to recognise and
promote talent which goes a long way in fostering
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camaraderie among employees and promotes a
sense of belonging in the Organisation.

The human resources development function of
the Company is guided by a strong set of values
and policies. The Company strives to provide the
best work environment with ample opportunities
to grow and explore. The Company maintains
a work environment that is free from physical,
verbal and sexual harassment.

The management believes that the competent and
committed human resources are vitally important
to attain success in the organisation. In line with
this philosophy, utmost care is being exercised
to attract quality resources and suitable training
is imparted on various skill-sets and behavior.
Annual sports and games were conducted across
the organisation to enhance the competitive spirit
and encourage bonding teamwork among the
employees.

The Company maintained healthy, cordial and
harmonious industrial relations at all levels during
the year under review.

40.3 INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company enjoyed harmonious industrial
relations during the financial year. The robust
employee relation practices, a collaborative
approach to working and vibrant work culture has
created a win-win situation for both employees
and the Organisation. This caring spirit has
gone a long way in maintaining a harmonious
environment across all units.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continuously strives for excellence in its
Investor Relations ("IR") engagement with International
and domestic investors through structured conference-
calls and periodic investor/analyst interactions
like individual meetings, participation in investor
conferences, quarterly earnings calls and annual
analyst meet with the Chairman & Chief Executive
Officer, Managing Director, Executive Director and
Business Heads. The Company interacted with various
Indian and overseas investors and analysts (excluding
quarterly earnings calls and specific event related
calls) after listing. The Company always believes in
leading from the front with emerging best practices in
IR and building a relationship of mutual understanding
with investor/analysts.

The Company ensures that critical information
about the Company is available to all the investors
by uploading all such information at the Company's
website.

42.

43.

44,

45.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with Section 92 and 134 of the Act
read with MCA circular dated 28 August 2020, and
notification dated 5 March 2021 the requirement to
annex an extract of the annual return with this Annual
report in form MGT-9 is dispensed with and is no longer
required.

In terms of Sections 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Act,
annual return is available under the ‘Investors' section
of the Company's website, www.ambergroupindia.
com and can be viewed at the following link: http://
ambergroupindia.com/agm-annual-reports-results.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the financial year under review, the Company
has duly complied with all the applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS/
OUTGO

The information required under Section 134 (3) (m) of
the Act read with Rule 8(3) of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, is appended hereto as "Annexure - J" and
forms part of this Report.

STATUTORY DISCLOSURE

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting
is required in respect of the following items as there
were no transactions/events on these items during the
financial year under review :

1. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to
dividend, voting or otherwise.

2. lIssue of shares (including sweat equity shares)
to employees of the Company under any scheme
save or ESOS.

3. Significant or material orders passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact
the going concern status and Company's
operations in future.

4. Application filed for Corporate insolvency
resolution process under “The Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016", by a Financial or
operational creditor or by the Company itself
during the period under review.

Instance of onetime settlement with any Bank or
Financial Institution.

5. Voting rights which are not directly exercised
by the Employees in respect of shares for the

A

S1HOd3d AHOLNLVLS



K amber

DIRECTOR'S REPORT 2021 - 22 (Contd.)

46.

47.

Place : Gurugram
Date : 13 May 2022

subscription/ purchase of which loan was given
by the Company (as there is no scheme pursuant
to which such persons can beneficially hold
shares as envisaged under Section 67(3)(c) of the
Act).

6. Buy Back of Shares.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

The Key financial ratios for the financial year ended 31
March 2022 forms part of the Management Discussion
and Analysis Report.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The Board's Report and Management Discussion &
Analysis may contain certain statements describing
the Company's objectives, expectations or forecasts
that appear to be forward-looking within the meaning
of applicable securities laws and regulations while
actual outcomes may differ materially from what is
expressed herein.

The Company is not obliged to update any such
forward-looking statements. Some important factors

(Jasbir Singh)

Chairman & CEO and Director
DIN:- 00259632

248 - |, Vasant Vihar,

Dehradun — 248006, Uttarakhand

48.

that could influence the Company's operations
comprise economic developments, pricing and
demand and supply conditions in global and domestic
markets, changes in government regulations, tax laws,
litigation and industrial relations.
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DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

PREAMBLE

Regulation 43A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
read with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Second Amendment) Regulations,
2016 ("SEBI (LODR) Regulations") mandated framing
of Dividend Distribution Policy (“The Policy") by top
500 listed companies, based on market capitalisation.
Considering the provisions of the said Regulation
43A, the Board of Directors (the "Board”) of Amber
Enterprises India Limited ("Company”) recognises the
need to strengthen the Corporate Governance in the
Company by adopting the Dividend Distribution Policy.

The policy, in the interest of providing transparency
to the shareholders, sets out the circumstances and
different factors for consideration by the Board at
the time of deciding on distribution or of retention of
profits. In view of the said requirement, the Board of
the Company recognises the need to lay down a broad
framework with regard to the distribution of dividend to
its shareholders and utilisation of the retained earnings.
The Policy reflects the intent of the Company to reward
its shareholders by distributing a portion of its profits
after retaining sufficient funds for the business needs
and growth of the Company.

The Company would ensure to strike the right balance
between the quantum of the dividend paid and amount
of profits retained in the business for various purposes.
The Board will have regards to this policy while
declaring/recommending dividends on the behalf of
the Company. Through this policy, the Company would
strive to maintain a consistent approach to dividend
pay-out plans.

The Board of the Company at its meeting held on 8
February 2019 had approved and adopted the Dividend
Distribution Policy (the "Policy"), pursuant to the terms
of Regulation 43A of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations read
with SEBI (LODR) (Second Amendment), 2016.

The policy shall become effective from the date of its
approval by the Board i.e. 8 February 2019.

For the purpose of this Policy, Dividend includes Interim
Dividend.

OBJECTIVE OF THE POLICY

The objective of the Dividend Distribution Policy of the
Company is to define the various factors affecting the
dividend decision, i.e.:

a. Defining internal and external factors impacting
the dividend decision;

b.  Financial parameters affecting dividend decision;

c.  Circumstances leading to declaration of dividend
or the lack of it;

d.  Defining dividend distribution payment form and
method.

PARAMETERS FOR THE POLICY:

3.1 Operating Performance:

The Board shall determine the dividend pay-out
in a particular year after taking into consideration
the operating and financial performance of the
Company, the advice of executive management
(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer and Managing
Director) and other relevant factors in this regard.

3.2 Operating cash flow of the Company:

In case of inadequacy in operating cash flow, the
Company may need to rely on external funding to
meet its financial obligations and other working
capital needs. The Board will consider the same
before its deciding on whether to declare dividend
or retain its profits.

3.3 Inadequacy of profits:

If during any financial year, the Board determines
that the profits of the Company are inadequate or
in the event of loss, the Board may decide not to
declare dividends for the financial year.

3.4 Statutory/ Regulatory requirements and tax
considerations:

The Company shall observe the relevant statutory
requirements including those with respect to
mandatory transfer of a certain portion of profits
to any specific reserve(s), as may be applicable
to the Company at the time of taking decision
with regard to dividend declaration or retention of
profit.

Dividend distribution tax as per applicable tax
regulations in India.

Any restriction on payment of dividends by virtue
of any regulation, if any, as may be applicable
to the Company at the time of declaration of
dividend.
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3.5

3.6

3.7

Operational and working capital requirements,
provision for depreciation and capital
expenditure plans:

In addition to the operational and working capital
requirements, the Board may also take into
account the need to plough back the earnings
on account of depreciation, replacement of
capital assets, expansion and modernisation or
augmentation of capital assets, including any
major capital expenditure proposal(s) and inter-
corporate investments.

Prudential requirements:

The Company may take into account the following
prudential requirements:-

The need to augment
resources for the Company.

long term financial

Ability of the Company to raise finance from
the lending markets and capital markets and
prevailing market conditions thereto.

Prospective projects and strategic decisions in
order decide to build a healthy reserve of retained
earnings.

Stakeholder's expectations:

The Board, while considering the decision of
dividend pay-out or retention of a certain amount
entire profits of the Company, shall, as far as
possible, consider the expectations of the major
stake holders including the small shareholders
of the Company, who generally expect a regular
dividend pay-out.

OTHER SIGNIFICANT PARAMETERS:

4.1.

4.2.

Circumstances under which the shareholders
may or may not expect dividend:

The Shareholders of the Company may not expect
Dividend under the following circumstances:

Significant expansion project requiring higher
allocation of capital.

Any acquisitions or joint ventures requiring
significant allocation of capital.

Utilisation of surplus cash for buy-back of
securities.

Financial parameters that shall be considered
while declaring dividend:

Profits earned during the year.

The need for ploughing back the profits into
business.

4.3.

Need for conservation of cash due to economic
downturn and

Additional investments in
associates/Joint Ventures.

subsidiaries/

Internal and External factors to be considered
while declaring dividend.

The decision regarding dividend pay-out is a
crucial business decision as it determines the
amount of profit to be distributed among the
shareholders and amount of profit to be retained
in business. The Board may decide to declare /
recommend dividend, subject to several factors
and hence, any optimal policy in this regard may
depend upon multifarious factors.

The dividend pay-out decision depends upon the
following external and internal factors:
External Factors:

Prevailing economic and monetary conditions
including credit availability, both domestic and
international.

Internal Factors:

Restructuring events
acquisitions.

including mergers and

Loan covenants entered into with Bankers /
Lenders/ Financial institutions.

Expansion of existing business.
Legal and regulatory requirements.

Any other relevant factors as may be deemed fit
by the Board of the Company, including:

i.  Policy on utilisation of retained earnings:

The Company may utilise the retained
earnings for issue of fully paid bonus shares,
buy back of shares, restructuring events
including mergers and acquisitions, other
general factors specified in this policy and for
such other purposes as may be statutorily
permissible.

ii. Parameters adopted with regard to various
classes of shares:

a) At present, the issued, subscribed and
paid up share capital comprises only
one class of equity shares.

b)  The payment of dividend shall be based
on the respective rights attached to
each class of shares as their terms of
issue.
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¢) The dividends shall be paid out of the
Company's distributable profits and
/ or general reserves and from such
other reserves as may be statutorily
permissible, and shall be allocated
among shareholders on a pro-rate
basis according to the number of each
type and class of shares held.

RATE/ QUANTUM OF DIVIDEND:

It has always been the Company's endeavour to deliver
sustainable value to all its stakeholders. The Company
will strive to distribute an optimal and appropriate
level of the profits earned by it in its business, to the
shareholders, in the form of dividend. The Company
would maintain a dividend pay-out as may be
determined by the Board from time to time, considering
the general business factors and other significant
parameters specified in this policy.

THE POLICY SHALL NOT APPLY TO:

Determination and declaring dividend on preference
shares, if any to be issued by the Company at a later
date, as the same will be as per the terms of issue
approved by the shareholders;

Distribution of dividend in kind, for instance by issue
of fully or partly paid bonus shares or other securities,
subject to applicable law;

Distribution of cash as an alternative to payment of
dividend by way of buyback of equity shares.

CONFLICT IN POLICY

In the event of any conflict between this Policy and the
provisions contained in the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations shall prevail.

DISCLOSURES

The Dividend Distribution Policy shall be disclosed in
the Annual Report and on the website of the Company
i.e.www.ambergroupindia.com

AMENDMENTS TO THE POLICY

This policy may be amended by the Board of the
Company atany time either suo-moto and / or pursuant
to amendments to the SEBI (LODR) Regulations or such
other law, rules, regulations, standards, guidelines as
applicable. If there is any amendment to the policy, this
policy will be deemed to have been amended and such
amendment will take effect from date of the approval
of such amendment.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (SHARE BASED
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS) REGULATIONS, 2014

The Company had introduced an employee stock option plan namely "Amber Enterprises India Limited - Employee Stock
Option Plan 2017" ("ESOP 2017"/ "Plan”) to attract, retain, incentivise and motivate the Company's and its Subsidiaries' eligible
employees. The total options reserve under ESOP 2017 is 10,10,800 (Ten Lakh Ten Thousand Eight Hundred) Options.

Pursuant to the said ESOP 2017, stock options have been granted to the eligible employees of the Company.

Further, the Plan has been laid down in accordance with the terms of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 ("SEBI SBEB Regulations”) and a certificate to this effect from Secretarial Auditor of
the Company, Amit Chaturvedi & Associates, will be placed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company has not

amended the Plan during the financial year 2021 -22.

A. Relevant disclosures in terms of the “Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments" issued by
ICAI or any other relevant accounting standards as prescribed from time to time.

Relevant details has been provided in Note no. 41 of the Notes to Standalone Financial Statements forming part of the
Annual Report financial year 2021-22 of the Company. The said disclosure have also been placed on the website of the
Company and may be accessed at www.ambergroupindia.com.

B. Diluted EPS on issue of shares pursuant to all the schemes covered under the regulations is disclosed in the following
Section C in accordance with ‘Accounting Standard 20 - Earnings Per Share' issued by ICAI or any other relevant
accounting standards as prescribed from time to time.

C. General Terms and Conditions

Sl.
No.

Particulars

Amber ESOP 2018

1.

General Terms and Conditions

A.

Date of Shareholder's Approval

23 December 2020 via Postal Ballot

B

Total number of options approved under
ESOP

10,10,800 (Ten Lakh Ten Thousand Eight Hundred) Options

Vesting requirements

The options granted shall vest based upon the performance of the
Employee, as may be determined by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee from time to time but shall not be less than 1 (one) and not
more than 4 (four) years from the date of grant of options. Vesting may
happen in one or more tranches.

Exercise price or pricing formula

The Exercise Price has been fixed at ¥ 2400/- per option share.

Maximum term of options granted

The options granted under Scheme will vest over a period of Four years
in equal proportion at the end of each year anniversary from the date
of grant of options. Further the Options vested at each period may be
exercised by the Option Grantee within a maximum period of Three
Years from the date of vesting of Options. Hence, maximum term of for
each Option granted will vary depending upon vesting period.

Source of Shares

Primary

Variation in terms of options

During the year, no amendment/ modification/ variation has been made
in terms of options granted by the Company.

Method used to account for Fair Value
Method ESOP

Fair Value Method

Employee wise details of options
granted during the year and as on date
of report:

Details of stock options granted to Key Managerial Personnel are
mentioned herein below:

1. Mr. Udaiveer Singh — 70000 Options
2. Mr. Sanjay Arora — 50000 Options
3. Mr. Sachin Gupta - 50000 Options
4. Mr. Sudhir Goyal - 50000 Options

Any other employee who receives a grant
in any one year of option amounting to
5% or more of option granted during that
year

During the year no further stock options have been granted to the senior
managerial personnel, under the Amber ESOP 2017, except as mentioned
above in point no.3
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Sl.
No.

Particulars

Amber ESOP 2018

Identified employees who were granted
option, during any one year, equal to
or exceeding 1% of the issued capital
(excluding outstanding warrants and
conversions) of the Company at the
time of grant

None.

Weighted-average exercise price

When the exercise price is equal/exceeds to market price : Not Applicable
When the exercise price is less than market price: ¥ 2400/-

Weighted-average fair values of options

When the exercise price is equal/exceeds to market price: Not Applicable
When the exercise price is less than market price: ¥ 1524.70/- each

Description of the method and
significant assumptions used during the
year to estimate the fair value of options

Fair Value Method (Black Scholes Model).
Some of the basic assumptions used in the Black-Scholes model are —

Markets are efficient: This assumption suggests that people cannot
consistently predict the direction of the market or an individual stock.
The Black-Scholes model assumes stocks move in a manner referred
to as a random walk. Random walk means that at any given moment in
time, the price of the underlying stock can go up or down with the same
probability. The price of a stock in time t+1 is independent from the price
in time Interest rates remain constant and known: The Black -Scholes
model uses the risk-free rate to represent this constant and known rate.

Returns are normally distributed: This assumption suggests returns on
the underlying stock are normally distributed.

Constant volatility- The most significant assumption is that volatility, a
measure of how much a stock can be expected to move in the near-
term, is a constant over time. While volatility can be relatively constant
in very short term, it is never constant in longer term. Some advanced
option valuation models substitute Black-Scholes constant volatility
with stochastic-process generated estimates.

Liquidity- the Black-Scholes model assumes that markets are perfectly
liquid and it is possible to purchase or sell any amount of stock or options
or their fractions at any given time.

Weighted-average values of share price

The fair value is computed using the existing share price of the Company,
for which we have taken the closing market price of 19 April 2021 i.e. day
of the grant date at NSE i.e. ¥ 3,147.95/- per share.

Exercise Price

% 2400 per option

Expected Volatility

Vest 1: 44.1%
Vest 2:42.2%
Vest 3:42.1%
Vest 4:42.2%

10.

Expected Option Life

The options granted under Scheme will vest over a period of Four years
in equal proportion at the end of each year anniversary from the date of
grant of options. Further the Options vested at the each period may be
exercised by the Option Grantee within a maximum period of Three Year
from the date of vesting of Options. Hence, maximum term of for each
Option granted will vary from 4 years to 7 years depending upon vesting
period.

11.

Expected Dividends Grant 2018

The Dividend Yield is 0.29%.

12.

The risk-free interest rate

The Risk free rate for first, second, third and fourth vesting is 4.7%, 5.2%,
5.5% and 5.8% respectively.
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Sl
No.

Particulars

Amber ESOP 2018

13.

The method used and the assumptions
made to incorporate the effects of
expected early exercise.

Not Applicable, as options granted cannot be exercised before the
vesting of option.

14.

How expected volatility was determined,
including an explanation of the extent to
which expected volatility was based on
historical volatility.

The volatility has been determined as the annualised standard deviation
of the continuously compounded rate of return of the stock over a period
of time. The Expected volatility has been based on the historical volatility
for a period that approximates the expected life of options being valued.

15.

Whether and how any other features of
the option grant were incorporated into
the measurement of fair value, such as
a market condition

No other features have been considered for valuation of the options.

16.

Diluted EPS on issue of shares pursuant
to Amber ESOP 2017 (Nominal value of
share ¥ 10)

% 14.28 per share (Standalone basis)
% 32.47 per share (Consolidated basis)

OPTION MOVEMENT DURING THE YEAR UNDER AMBER ESOP 2017

Particulars

Details of Amber ESOP 2017

Number of options outstanding at the beginning of the period

Number of options granted during the year

2,20,000 (Two Lakh Twenty Thousand) Options

Number of options forfeited / lapsed during the year Nil

Number of options vested during the year

Nil

Number of options exercised during the year

Nil

Number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options | N.A.

Money realised by exercise of options (INR), if scheme is | Nil
implemented directly by the Company

Loan repaid by the Trust during the year from exercise price | Not Applicable

received
Number of options outstanding at the end of the year 2,20,000 (Two Lakh Twenty Thousand) Options
Number of options exercisable at the end of the year Nil
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AMBER ENTERPRISES INDIA LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

ANNEXURE - D

Disclosure pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

1. Theratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial

®
S1HOd3H AHOLNLYLS

year.
Sl. . . .
No. Name & Designation Ratio
1. | Mr. Jasbir Singh, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 1393.6
2. | Mr. Daljit Singh, Managing Director 1098.3
3 E/tl(rj Manoj Kumar Sehrawat, Nominee Director of Ascent Investment Holdings Pte. -

4. | Dr. Girish Kumar Ahuja, Independent Director 76.5
5. | Mr. Satwinder Singh, Independent Director 85.2
6. |Ms. Sudha Pillai, Independent Director 78.7

2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

S(I)'_ Name & Designation Increase in percentage
1. | Mr. Jasbir Singh, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 40%

2. | Mr. Daljit Singh, Managing Director 40%

3 Mr. Manoj Kumar Sehrawat, Nominee Director of Ascent Investment Holdings Pte. Not Applicable

Ltd.

4. | Dr. Girish Kumar Ahuja, Independent Director Not Applicable

5. | Mr. Satwinder Singh, Independent Director Not Applicable

6. |Ms. Sudha Pillai, Independent Director Not Applicable

7. | Mr. Sudhir Goyal, Chief Financial Officer 36.6%

8. |Ms. Konica Yadav, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 46.3%

S e o

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 16%

Dr. Girish Kumar Ahuja, Mr. Satwinder Singh and Ms. Sudha Pillai were paid only sitting fees and commission.

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31 March 2022: 1363

Theincrement giventoeachindividualemployeeis based onthe employee's potential, experience as also their performance

and contribution to the Company's progress over a period of time. Average percentage increment of employees other
than the key managerial personnel in last financial year 2021 — 2022 was: 15%

The compensation for the Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and Employees (Staff) of the Company is
guided by the external competitiveness and internal parity through annual benchmarking surveys.

Internally, performance ratings of all employee